OFFICE OF PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT & OVERSIGHT
FISCAL 2013 ANNUAL REPORT GUIDANCE

The Office of Performance Management & Oversight (OPMO) measures the performance of all
public and quasi-public entities engaged in economic development. All agencies are required to
submit an Annual Report, which includes all of the following information and demonstrates
progress made against the Annual Plan submitted for the same year.

Based on review of Performance to Plan, the Office of Performance Management and Oversight
will annually re-evaluate the goals and measures established by the agencies. The Office will
recommend changes to goals and measures as appropriate to align with the statewide
economic development policy and plan.

The annual reports of each agency will be published on the official website of the
Commonwealth, and be electronically submitted to the clerks of the Senate and House of
Representatives, the Chairs of the House and Senate Committees on Ways and Means and the
House and Senate Chairs of the Joint Committee on Economic Development and Emerging
Technologies.

Filing Instructions:

The Fiscal Year 2013 report is due no later than Friday, November 1, 2013. An electronic copy
of the report and attachments A & B should be e-mailed to Anne.Struthers@state.ma.us.

1) AGENCY INFORMATION

Agency Name Massachusetts Development Finance Agency

Agency Head Marty Jones
Title President and CEO

Website www.massdevelopment.com

Address 99 High Street, Boston, MA 02110

2) MiSSION STATEMENT

Please include the Mission Statement for your organization below.

MassDevelopment’s mission is to stimulate economic development and industrial growth, increase




employment, build communities, promote prosperity and general welfare, and eradicate blight across
the Commonwealth.

3) PERFORMANCE ON GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Please provide details on the agency’s progress and accomplishments for Fiscal Year 2013 as it relates to
the Fiscal Year 2013 Plan submitted by your agency. This information should be included as Attachment
A and should include prior year perspective. In addition to your Performance to Plan Report, Questions
5 through 10 provides guidance on the specific information required under Chapter 240 of the Acts of
2010.

Please see previously submitted FY13 Annual Performance Report for information on achievement of
goals laid out in the Agency’s FY13 Business Plan.

4) ACCOUNTING

Please provide financial information for your agency. Below please give a summary of Receipts and
Expenditures during the fiscal year, and include the Assets and Liabilities at the end of the fiscal year.
Please include the most recent audited financial report for the agency as Attachment B.

AMOUNT

Receipts $92,024,047
Expenditures $108,220,305
Assets $605.7 million
Liabilities $212 million

5) INVESTMENTS OR GRANTS TO BUSINESSES OR INDIVIDUALS

Does your agency make investments and/or provide grants to businesses or individuals? Yes |E No |:|
If Yes, please provide detailed information on investments and/or grants made during FY13 in the
Performance on Goals and Objectives section of this report. Information should include the number,
nature and amounts of investments made and grants awarded by your agency along with job,
investment and/or other economic development impact. Please list the name(s) of the investment
and/or grant programs offered by your agency in the space provided below:

Finance Programs

Bond Financing
MassDevelopment’s bond financing programs offer a cost-effective way to finance real estate and

equipment needed to meet the Commonwealth’s economic development goals. MassDevelopment




offers tax-exempt and taxable bonds; pool loans; value leases; and the capital financing 501 program.

Loans & Guarantees

MassDevelopment’s lending programs offer borrowers access to capital to complete a wide range of
projects to meet the Commonwealth’s economic development goals. MassDevelopment offers
predevelopment loans, real estate loans, equipment loans, mortgage insurance guarantees, green
loans, and the USDA loan guarantee program.

Tax Credit Financing
MassDevelopment works with project proponents to determine tax credit financing eligibility for

economic development efforts. Specific tax credit programs provide incentives to eligible businesses,
nonprofits, and developers. MassDevelopment offers 4% Federal Low Income Housing Tax Credits
and the New Markets Tax Credit Program.

Specialty Programs

MassDevelopment administers specialty loan and grant programs to support economic development.
We offer financial and program assistance through the Brownfields Redevelopment Fund, Charter
School Loan Guarantees, Community Service 501(c)(3) Loan Fund, Cultural Facilities Fund, Emerging
Technology Fund, Exporter Financing, Gloucester Revolving Loan Fund, Small Farm Loan Program,
Southeast Regional Loan Fund, Star Fund, Community Health Center grant program and the
TechDollars program.

6) DeBT OR EQUITY INVESTMENT DETAILS

Is your agency involved in debt or equity investments for businesses? Yes |E No |:|

If Yes, please provide detailed information on debt and/or equity investments made during FY13 in the
Performance on Goals and Objectives section of this report along with job, investment and/or other
economic development impact. Please list the name(s) of the debit and/or equity investments
programs offered by your agency in the space provided below:

See Sections 7 and 8.

7) LoAN DETAILS

Is your agency involved in real estate loans, working capital loans, or any other type of loan or
guarantee? Yes| | No[ ]
If Yes, please provide detailed information on loan(s) and/or guarantee(s) made during FY13 in the

Performance on Goals and Objectives section of this report along with job, investment and/or other
economic development impact. Please list the types of loan(s) and/or guarantee(s) offered by your
agency in the space provided below:




Lending

MassDevelopment’s lending programs include Predevelopment Loans, Real Estate Loans, Equipment
Loans, Mortgage Insurance Guarantees, Green Loan Program, USDA Loan Guarantee Program, Charter
School Loan Guarantees, Community Service 501(c)(3) Loan Fund, Emerging Technology

Fund, Exporter Financing, Gloucester Revolving Loan Fund, Small Farm Loan Program, Southeast
Regional Loan Fund, Star Fund, and TechDollars.

8) OTHER FORMS OF FINANCING OR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE?

If your agency provides any other form of financing or financial assistance, please include FY13 details in
the Performance on Goals and Objectives section of this report along with job, investment and/or other
economic development impact. Please list the types of other forms of financing offered by your agency

in the space provided below:

Bond Financing
MassDevelopment’s bond financing programs offer a cost-effective way to finance real estate and

equipment need to meet the Commonwealth’s economic development goals. MassDevelopment
bond financing programs include tax-exempt and taxable bonds, as well as capital financing 501,
pool loans and the value lease program.

Specialty Programs
In addition to bond and lending finance programs, MassDevelopment offers specialized programs

offering financing assistance to economic development projects. These specialized programs include
the New Market Tax Credit program, the Brownfields Redevelopment Fund, Community Service
grants, Cultural Facilities Fund grants (in partnership with the Massachusetts Cultural Council), and
the Advanced Manufacturing Futures Program.

9) PATENTS OR PRODUCTS

Does your agency track patents or products resulting from agency-funded activities?  Yes[ ] No |X|
If Yes, please include details in the Performance on Goals and Objectives section of this report along
with job, investment and/or other economic development impact. Please list the agency-funded

activities of your agency that promote patent and product advancement in the space provided below:

[Please enter the details on patents or products here.]

10) TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

If your agency provides technical assistance, please provide detailed information on technical assistance
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http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/charter-school-loan-guarantees/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/charter-school-loan-guarantees/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/community-service-501c3-loan-fund/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/emerging-technology-fund/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/emerging-technology-fund/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/exporter-financing/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/gloucester-revolving-loan-fund/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/small-farm-loan-program/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/south-east-regional-loan-fund/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/south-east-regional-loan-fund/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/star-fund/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/tech-dollars/
http://www.massdevelopment.com/financing/specialty-loan-programs/brownfields-redevelopment-fund/

provided during FY13 in the Performance on Goals and Objectives section of this report along with job,
investment, and/or other economic development impact. Please list the name(s) of the technical
assistance programs offered by your agency in the space provided below:

In addition to bond and lending finance programs, MassDevelopment provides a range of services and
support through its real estate division. This division manages properties, oversees surplus public
property redevelopments, and provides technical assistance to municipalities for a range of economic
development efforts. MassDevelopment technical assistance services include project management,
site planning, market feasibility analysis, financial analysis, brownfields remediation management,
funding identification/application/administration, RFP development/process management,
developer selection, contract negotiation, selection and management of consultants site assembly
management, strategic analysis and consensus building, property management oversight and
technical assistance for expedited permitting (MGL C. 43D).
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Annual Performance Report— Fiscal Year 2013

RESULT/TREND

FY14 Business Plan Alignment

1. Create and retain jobs.

Reported in Agency Scorecard—Theme
1A

2. Strengthen and champion economically-challenged communities including Gateway Cities.

Addressed in FY 14 Business Plan Goals

3. Build out Devens and move it toward self-sustainability.

Addressed in FY 14 Business Plan Goals

o

4. Provide access to capital for businesses and non-profits throughout the Commonwealth.

Reported in Agency Scorecard—Theme 1B

5. Work with federal, state, local, nonprofit, and private partners to strengthen the Common-
wealth’s defense sector.

Addressed in FY 14 Business Plan Goals

6. Support manufacturing.

Addressed in FY 14 Business Plan Goals

7. Support innovation and entrepreneurship.

Choosing to Compete Goal

Choosing to Compete Goal & Addressed
in FY14 Business Plan Goals

8. Support regional development through infrastructure investments and local empowerment. t

9. Increase the ease of doing business in the Commonwealth.

Choosing to Compete Goal

10. Address Massachusetts cost competiveness. (* Includes Housing results) '

Choosing to Compete Goal & Housing is-
Addressed in FY 14 Business Plan Goals

Color coding: Goal Fully Completed (Green); Goal Partially Completed (Yellow); Goal Not Completed/Action Underway (Red)

Directional Coding (for Trend): Up Arrow (Trend Positive), Horizontal Arrow (Trend to Monitor); Down Arrow (Trend Negative) (as compared to

FY12)
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D Build. Create. Innovate.

1. Create Jobs

ACTION RESULTS
PrO\"de ﬁ nNanci ng d nd rea I estate FY2013- Projected New Jobs Created FY2012 - Projected New Jobs Created
se rviCES. NMTC, 150, 7% B Greater Boston
B Greater Boston
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Build. Create. Innovate.

2. Strengthen and champion economically challenged communities including Gateway Cities.

ACTION

Provide financing and real estate

services.

MEASUREMENT

# of projectsin

Gateway Cities:

FY 2013—Gateway City Results

i # projected jobs

Gateway Cities:

created in Gateway
Cities:

RESULTS

FY 2012—Gateway City Results

s i # projected jobs

Gateway Cities:

# of projectsin

Gateway Cities: created in Gateway

# of projects in Gateway Cities
S invested in Gateway Cities

# jobs in Gateway Cities (new

permanent + construction)

TREND

. 36% increase in projects in
Gateway Cities

. 18% decrease in total funding
to Gateway Cities

. Nearly triple # of projected
jobs created in Gateway Cities

Cities:

0127 05482,497,768 03,298 #5591,999,566 * *1,156

*($ Invested includes 2 UMassMemorial Med. Ctr. bonds ($100M))

*Job creation measures 3 year projection of new permanent jobs by borrower and application of the IMPLAN formula for construction jobs.

Gateway Cities— Mass Development Investments—FY13 and FY12

Fitchburg
Pittsfield

Leominster

Ever\?\tl‘ = =2 Revere
che!

Holyoke

Chicopee
P Worcester

Westfiel

Springfield

Brockton‘

—

- 2012 & 2013 Investment Made

2012 Investment Not Made &
2013 Investment Made

- 2012 & 2013 Investment Not Made
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Build. Create.

Innovate.

3. Build out Devens and move it toward self-sustainability

ACTION RESULTS

Infrastructure Build Out—MDFA Major Projects Comparison

Increase sources of revenue and
manage/reduce expenses

MEASUREMENT

. Acres of New Development
Constructed

% Infrastructure Complete for Full
Build out

. Total S Invested
« % Reduction in Annual Deficit
. Growth in Total Assessed

Valuation

>

. Total assessed valuation trend in indus-

trial properties should be monitored

« Grant Road development will increase
residential property tax but will also
drive increased education costs

« Land sales significantly down FY13
from FY12

DEVENS ZZa

MASSACHUSETTS
FY2013 Development—At A Glance

Acres New Development Constructed: 2

% Infrastructure Complete: 78% (No Change from FY12)
Total $ Invested:

Public: $1,665,362

Private: $34,453,013

FY13

% Infrastructure Com-
plete to Plan

FY12

% Infrastructure Com-
plete to Plan

% Change

Devens

Northampton

78%
Other Major Projects

74%

78%
(For Comparison)

60%

0%

14%

Taunton

50%

NA

50%

Devens Municipal Operations

B Devens Municipal Operations FY12 M Devens Municipal Operations FY13

§10,940,773
$9,366,46

98,369,204
95,997,42

% Change: -23.67%

Total

3,369,034 S2ATL6S

Revenues Expenses

Devens Total Assessed Valuation - 2012 to
2013

FY2012 Valuation | FY2013 Valuation Change Ch;/(r,lge

Residential $24,830,100 $26,726,700 $1,896,600 7.64%
Commercial $27,540,600 $35,248,300| $7,707,700, 27.99%
Industrial $126,740,400 $110,475,950| -$16,264,450| -12.83%
Total $179,111,100 $172,450,950| -$6,660,150| -3.72%

Note: FY2012 Valuation as of 1/1/2011. FY2013 Valuation as of 1/1/2012




MASSDEVELOPMENT

Build. Create. Innovate.

4. Provide access to capital for businesses and non-profits throughout the Commonwealth

ACTION

Continue to review programs & adjust to
respond to borrower needs.

Pursue strategic partnerships and
alternative financing structures to in-
crease MassDevelopment's resources &

lending.

MEASUREMENT
. Total S Invested

. # of Financings

TREND

e 22% increase in total projects

e 1% increase in total volume financed

¢ Consideration of alternative strategies to increase
resources underway including advocacy for special-
ty fund recapitalization

RESULTS

Total $ Invested (Finance Programs)

Fiscal 2013
$2,333,253,346

Fiscal 2012
$2,300,352,288

Total Closings

317

246

Out of State
NMTC,
$10,000,000
West, 1%
$428,644,882 18%
Southeast,

$129,528,209
6%

Central,
$124,672,095
5%

—Greater Boston,
$1,265,270,052
54%

Northeast,
375,138,108 16%

FY 2013 Dollars and Percent of Dollars by Region

B Greater Boston
B Northeast
 Central

B Southeast

B West

B Other

$185,731,417 8%

$306,749,773

FY 2012 Dollars and Percent of Dollars by Region

Southeast,

]

Central,
13%
Northeast

$103,651,231
5%

West,
$239,212,163
10%

B Greater Boston
B Northeast
& Central
M Southeast
[ |
Greater Boston West

$1,465,007,704
64%

Out of State NMTC
2
1%

FY 2013 Projects and Percent of Projects by Region

B Greater Boston
B Northeast

H Central

M Southeast

B West

B Other

FY 2012 Projects and Percent of Projects by Region

H Greater Boston
M Northeast

H Central

M Southeast

B West

« Secured $40M allocation of New Markets Tax Credits on behalf of the Commonwealth to support economic development project financing.

e Secured $2.3M grant from U.S. Dept. of Education on behalf of the Commonwealth to help charter schools obtain facilities.




MASSDEVELOPMENT

Build. Create. Innovate.

5. Work with federal, state, local, nonprofit, and private partners to strengthen the Commonwealth’s defense sector.

ACTION
Work with Military Asset and Security Task Force

to develop operational efficiency improvement
plans and master plans for the installations.

Increase small business access to defense
contracts.

Work with DTI and Hanscom AFB to institute pilot
programs on rapid acquisitions and other Transi-
tion Agreements.

MEASUREMENT

RESULTS

Massachusetts Military Installation Economic Impact Study—At a Glance

Direct & Induced Employment—46,553 Total Economic Output—$14 Billion (Final release August 2012)

e Task Force Subcommitees Created and
Workplans Developed:

o # Plans Developed or Studies Completed for
Bases:

e Prime and Sub Contractor Events

Total Economic

Total Economic

Total Economic

Total Economic

Total Economic

Qo
%, : N
7
RogRESEB@QQ\@
Barnes AFB Fort Devens Hanscom AFB Westover AFB Natick Soldier Joint Base
Systems Center Cape Cod
Direct & Induced Direct & Induced Direct & Induced Direct & Induced Direct & Induced Direct & In-
Employment— Employment— Employment— Employment— Employment— duced Employ-
1,721 3,179 18,135 5,323 14,504 ment— 3,690

Total Economic

Output— Output— Output— Output— Output— Output—
$126,314,198 $396,647,443 $8,441,815,729 $393,677,264 $4,413,462,556 $405,749,213
TREND
FY13 Accomplishments—Governor’s Task Force & Defense Sector Initiatives
« Continue to monitor & advocate for » Established subcommittees & developed workplans « Energy Audit consultant selected & ready to initiate at all bases

Governor’s $177M Capital Bond Bill for
Military installations and implement if passed

Barnes runway project approved by Dept. of Transportation, Fed.
Aviation Admin. & Nat’l Guard

« Recommended Governor Patrick sign Executive Order renaming  «
Joint Base Cape Cod

« Continue to support Governor’s Task Force

» Science and Technology Board meetings held at Hanscom & Natick « Hanscom workforce training certificate program developed

» Develop cyber opportunity at Hanscom « SWOT Analyses of Hanscom, Natick & Westover initiated .

Capital Bond Bill filed
« Implementation of recommendations from

SWOT analyses

« Hanscom/JBCC land exchange approved by Dept. of Defense &
transfer underway



http://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/a/a7/Air_National_Guard.png
http://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/9/92/United_States_Army_Soldier_Systems_Center_Logo.gif

MASSDEVELOPMENT

Build. Create. Innovate.

6. Support the Commonwealth’s manufacturing sector

ACTION

Participate in the Commonwealth's
Advanced Manufacturing Collaborative
(AMC).

Provide financing programs for
manufacturers through tax-exempt bonds,
General Fund & Emerging Technology
Fund.

MEASUREMENT

« # of Manufacturing Projects financed
and § invested

« Financial Support for Manufacturing
Initiatives

« Participate in AMC

TREND

o 2.5% less total jobs created (FY13 to FY 12
e 19% less total investment (FY13 to FY12)

« 27% more total projects funded (FY13 to
FY12, includes 7 AMPitup! grants)

« Roll out of new loan guarantee product and
master solicitation for Advanced Manufac-
turing Futures Fund program

RESULTS

Projects - Manufacturing
40

35

30 A

25 -
20 -
B Projects
15 -

10 o

. 2013 2012

S Invested - Manufacturing

$45,000,000
$40,000,000 900
$35,000,000
$30,000,000
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
$15,000,000 -
$10,000,000

$5,000,000 835

Projected Jobs - Manufacturing
(New Permanent + Construction)

B S Invested

A
~

850 —
Jobs

N
800
2013 2012 2013

*Job creation measures 3 year projection of new permanent jobs by borrower and application of the IMPLAN

Massachusetts
ADVANCED VIANUFACTURING X &
SUNMMIT 2013 Se——
Thursday, June 20, 2013

i
i

7:45S a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Gillette Stadium, Foxborough

FY 2013 Program Highlights

Grants : 10

S Invested: $92,736

FY14 Budget Authorization
Advanced Manufacturing Futures Fund

$18,750,000 (Agency receives $9,325,000
in FY14, remainder contingent on gaming
revenue)

At a glance. ..

AMPitup! grantees held 20 events in FY2013, including company tours, teacher professional
development and presentations on the program to business leaders

Lowered fees and provided restructured finance programs options to better meet capital
needs of manufacturers

Agency advanced funding ($1M) to Adv. Manf Futures Fund to support programs prior to
fund authorization by Legislature and hired dedicated staff to support manufacturing

Commissioned and released “Innovation in Manufacturing: Makerspaces” an inventory of

makerspaces in the Commonwealth

Modified bond process (official action/delegated authority) to ease access to capital for
manufacturers



http://ampitupma.com/
http://www.ampitupma.com/pdf/makerspacesreport_april2013.pdf

ACTION

Increase and measure funding for early-
stage entrepreneurs & small business.

Increase production of rental housing in
high-market demand areas near centers
of innovation & entrepreneurial activity.

Support growth of small- & mid-sized
businesses.

Facilitate adoption of local innovations
into small and mid-size businesses and
manufacturers.

MEASUREMENT

. #interns at MassDevelopment

. #informational e-mails to
MassDevelopment borrowers on
internships

. # new rental units financed

. #loans—expansion of businesses
in innovation

MASSDEVELOPMENT

Build. Create.

Innovate.

RESULTS

7. Support innovation and entrepreneurship

2013—Loans to Support Innovation

*$11,500,000

2013 Internship Program

7 Interns—Policy & Program, Real Estate,

Communications, Marketing, Human

Resources, Recreation, Finance Programs

Agency did not reach out to borrowers

ETF *5 loans
«231 jobs
. 2,107,500
Other Restricted Fund :;(’)ans’
(Export Guarantees) «26 jobs
¢$3,657,500
General Fund *9 |oans
=562 jobs
+$17,265,000
Total *20 loans
=319 jobs

regarding internships in FY13

TREND

Housing Units Financed—FY13 v. FY12

. 39% increase in total housing production from
FY 12 (900) to FY13 (1,480), including new mar-
ket rate loan product and bonds

. Nearly doubled the # of internships offered at
MassDevelopment

Note: All units shown are funded by finance programs funded and are
rentals.

FY13 v. FY12 - Total New Rental Housing Units (By region)

B New Housing - By Region FY13
B New Housing - By Region FY12




MASSDEVELOPMENT

Build. Create. Innovate.

8. Support regional development through infrastructure investments and local empowerment

Identify priority development sites for
job and housing growth through re-
gional planning efforts

Provide targeted assistance to acceler-
ating development within priority areas

Encourage cities and towns to partici-
pate in structured process for imple-
menting local economic development
strategies

Run economic development academies
throughout the Commonwealth

Provide technical assistance to cities &
towns.

Develop or redevelop critical surplus
public properties.

ki

by 2.5%

# 43(d) projects assisted

# Cities and towns completing struc-
tured self assessment process; % of
cities and towns in Commonwealth
completing assessments

# academies; # in each region

# TAPs in partnership with ULI-
Boston; # municipal technical assis-
tance projects

# projects and acres developed in
surplus public properties (Devens,
Taunton, Northampton, Springfield
& Belchertown)

« 39% increase in # of Municipal Technical Assistance projects

« Increased communities participating in Economic Dev. Self Assessment Tool process

. Planning underway on strategies to leverage TAPs for additional opportunities for
Transformational Redevelopment initiatives

Economic Development
Self Assessment Tool
Completions (# of towns)

Economic
Development
Self Assessment
Tool
Completions #

Economic Development Self
Assessment Tool
Completions (% of towns)

6%
FY13 ° M Economic

Development
Self Assessment
‘ Tool

e e - Completions %

jp C— o — v

120% 14.0% 16.0%

FY12 4.5%

Worcester
Salem
Bridgewater
Framingham
Northampton
Devens
Lawrence

2013 Academies & # Attendees

30 40 50 60 70

Boston

FY13 v. FY 12—Municipal Technical Assistance

Technical Assistance Panels 2013
Chicopee—West End revitalization

Lawrence—North Canal district commercial
lease up

Barnstable - Downtown Hyannis parking

Framingham— Howard Street revitalization

FY13

hsz
-

FY12

Municipal Technical Assistance
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9. Increase the ease of doing business in the Commonwealth

Work with MMP and MassEcon to ||# of ambassadors and the annual in- MassDevelopment and MassEcon continue to collaborate, but the two
expand ambassadors program. crease in the number of ambassadors. agencies did not expand the ambassadors program in FY13

Showcase development-ready sites ||# of regional academies promoting
with information on business and ||streamlined permitting

housing costs. # communities assisted with permitting Showcasing Development Sites

Encourage & promote streamlined ||process issues MassDevelopment hosted 1 developer tour
in fiscal 2013 and plans to roll out others in

fiscal 14

permitting in Devens and other cit- | # visits to MDFA websites
ies and towns.

Keep MDFA web site fresh & user Merrimack Valley Housing Developer Tour

friendly. (pictured at right)

Academies in 2013 focused on regional needs and did not specifically

promote streamlined permitting

Communities Assisted with 43D Permitting: 5
« Agency will continue to offer regional academies that are designed to meet needs of Website FY13 Visits M Twitter Followers
regional economic development leaders (as of 9/3)
Massdevelopment.com 97,581
. New Director of Real Estate Services will implement new business plan to increase .
. . . o Devenscommunity.com 25,424
effectiveness and use of services provided by agency to municipalities 4,555
. MassDevelopment will continue to promote streamlined permit processes and ease VillageHillNorthamp-
of doing business at its owned projects ton.com 8,660 145
AMPitupMA.com 5,677



https://si0.twimg.com/profile_images/2602309006/4m8mkg3cvkmdi6wc7yn0.jpeg
https://si0.twimg.com/profile_images/218846917/Madevpms_building.jpg

it MASSIDDEVELOPMENT

Build. Create. Innovate.

10. Address Massachusetts Cost Competitiveness
RESULTS

ACTION MEASUREMENT

Fund use of e-health technologies | |- # Tech Dollars loans (for e-health)

through Tech Dollars program . $ granted for community health cen-

Use a portion of HEFA charitable ter efficiency improvements

trust funds to make community . # housing units financed or devel-
health centers more efficient. oped by MassDevelopment (including

Create more housing of varied Devens, Northampton and Taunton)

types. . H# Devens businesses with on-site en-

Encourage the business use of Com- ergy generation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the
Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
Boston, Massachusetts

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Massachusetts Development Finance
Agency (the “Agency’), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, which comprise the
statement of net position as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but net for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audif opinion.

Cpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Agency, a component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as of
June 30, 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generatly accepted in the United States of America.
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Emphasis of Matter

As disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements, the Agency adopted the recognition and disclosure
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65, ftems Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities, during the year ended June 30, 2013. Net position as of July 1, 2011
has been restated. Qur opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matters

The financial statements of the Agency, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, before they were
restated for the matter discussed in Note 19 to the financial statements, were audited by other auditors
whose report dated November 20, 2012 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3-14 be presented to supplement the basic financiai statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
coliectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplemental
information, the Statements of Departmental Net Position and Statements of Departmental Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

This information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and cther records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements,
and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15,
2013 on our consideration of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Agency’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Boston, Massachusetis
November 15, 2013



Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
' June 30, 2013

(unaudited)

As management of the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency (the "Agency"), we offer the
readers of the Agency's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the Agency for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. This discussion and analysis
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements. Unless otherwise indicated,
years in this discussion refer to the fiscal year ended June 30.

The Agency was created on September 30, 1998 pursuant to Chapter 23G of Massachusetts General
Laws (Chapter 289 of the Acts of 1998). The Agency is a body corporate and politic and a public
instrumentality and was created from the statutory merger of, and is the legal successor in all respects to,
two previous existing instrumentalities, the Massachusetts Government Land Bank (created in 1975
under Chapter 212 of the Acts of 1975) and the Massachusetts Industrial Finance Agency (created in
1978 pursuant to Chapter 23A of the Massachusetts General Laws). Other powers of the Agency are
also set forth in Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40D (with respect to the issuance of tax-exempt
bonds) and Chapter 498 of the Acts of 1993, as amended (with respect to the redevelopment of the
former Fort Devens, a former federal military base).

The purpose of the Agency is to stimulate economic growth, increase employment, eradicate blight,
promote prosperity and help build communities throughout the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the
"Commonwealth"). It does this through its powers to:

e Issue tax-exempt bonds for the benefit of certain industrial and commercial entities, educational,
health care and housing facilities and public bodies;

e Make loans and provide credit to eligible borrowers in accordance with its public purpose;

s Aid public and private enterprises in the redevelopment of surplus federal and state property and
other blighted, open, underdeveloped property;

¢ Administer specific statutory funds directed at certain economic development needs in the
Commonwealth, such as the Massachusetts Export Finance Fund, the Emerging Technology
Fund, the Cultural Facilities Fund, the Mortgage Insurance Fund and the Brownfields
Redevelopment Fund, and,;

o Issue debt, as needed, for the redevelopment of the former Fort Devens ("Devens").

The Agency is governed by an eleven member Board of Directors, nine of whom are appointed directly
by the Governor and two of whom are public officials, or their designees, serving ex-officio. The
Agency is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth for general-purpose financial statement
reporting purposes.



Using the Financial Statements

The Massachusetts Development Finance Agency’s annual report includes three basic financial
statements: the statements of net position, the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position and the statements of cash flows. The basic financial statements are prepared on an accrual
basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). The
Agency’s financial statements are reported as a special purpose business type entity.

The statements of net position reports assets plus deferred outflows of resources, liabilities plus deferred
inflows of resources and the difference between them as net position. Net position represents the
residual interest in the Agency's assets, plus deferred outflows of resources after liabilities, less deferred
inflows of resources and consist of three sections net investment in capital assets; restricted and
unrestricted. The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, ot
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included in this component of net
position. Net position is reported as restricted when constraints are imposed by third parties or enabling
legislation. The Agency's restricted net position is expendable. All other net position is unrestricted.

Revenues and expenses are categorized as either operating or non-operating based upon management’s
definition of the Agency’s principal ongoing operations.

The Agency restated its fiscal year 2012 beginning net position by a reduction of $9,359,297. Asa
result of implementing the provisions of GASB 65 Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,
deferred financing costs of $7,355,141 and deferred expenses of $2,004,156 were retroactively fully
amortized.



Financial Highlights

Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2612
(As restated)
Assets
Current assets $ 150,752,322 $ 179,646,347
Noncurrent assets 199,783,085 190,715,467
Assets held for sale 6,815,938 709,597
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 232,410,562 241,157,750
Total assets 589,761,907 612,229,161
Deferred Outflows of Resources 15,943,560 21,643,394
Liabilities
Current labilities 15,467,108 14,932,496
Noncurrent hiabilities 196,571,552 210,076,998
Total Labilities 212,038,660 225,009,494
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 74,791,780 70,372,295
Restricted 142,728,567 159,876,502
Unrestricted 176,146,460 178,614,264
Total net position 393,666,807 408,863,061
Total liabilities and net pésition $ 605,705,467 $ 633,872,555
Assets

The Agency’s current assets mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments,
current portion of loans receivable, interest receivable and accounts receivable and other assets. The
Agency’s noncurrent assets mainly consist of long-term cash and cash equivalents and investments,
investment in joint ventures, and net loans receivable. Current assets decreased $28.9 million from 2012
to 2013 mainly due to a shift in short-term investments to long-term investments during the fiscal year.
Noncurrent assets increased $9.1 million from 2012 to 2013 mainly due to the shift in investments from
short-term to long-term, offset by a decrease in investment in joint ventures due an impairment loss
taken on the Hospital Hill LLC investment.

The Agency’s operating accounts are held with TD Bank. The majority of the 100 Cambridge Street
and Eleciric System Utility bond proceeds are held with the trustee at Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas. The Agency’s investments are held with PFM Asset Management (“PFM™) as the Agency’s
investment advisor. The Agency’s cash, cash equivalents and investments are recorded at fair value and
consist of guaranteed investment contracts, certificates of deposit, demand deposits, money market
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mutual funds, Short-Term Asset Reserve Fund (“Star Fund™), corporate and government obligations and
equity investments.

The decrease of $16.8 million in cash, cash equivalents and investments from 2012 to 2013 is mainly
related to a decrease in total investments due to loan disbursements, grant disbursements and ongoing
operations. There was a shift within investments from short term to long term during the fiscal year.

The Agency is also the administrator of the STAR Fund. The STAR Fund is a fiduciary investment fund
that is managed like a money market fund that invests in short-term, high-quality securities and is
available for the investment of bond proceeds of the Agency’s client institutions. PFM Asset
Management is the STAR Fund’s investment advisor. The STAR Fund is designed to preserve
principal, provide daily liquidity, and earn a high level of income. The Agency’s holdings in the Star
Fund on the statements of net position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, were approximately $2.4 million
and $6.4 million, respectively.

Loans receivable consist of loans issued by the Agency (net of the allowance for Joan loss) primarily for
the following economic development program types:

¢ Business loans

Construction loans

Permanent real estate loans
Equipment loans

Development loans

Emerging Technology loans
Brownfields Redevelopment loans
Export financing

@

& &

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, there were $95.7 million and $93.6 million, respectively, of net loans
receivable.

Net loans receivable increased $2.1 million from 2012 to 2013. The increase is mainly due to more loan
disbursements as compared to loan repayments during the fiscal year. There were approximately $20.0
million of loan disbursements and $17.2 million of loan repayments during the fiscal year. This increase
is offset by an increase in the loan loss reserve of approximately $0.7 million.

Investment in joint ventures includes the Agency’s equity investments in Hospital Hill, LLC, the
Commonwealth Fund 111 LLC, and seventeen New Markets Tax Credit (“NMTC”) entities as of June
30, 2013. The decrease of $6.1 million from 2012 to 2013 is mainly related to activity for the Hospital
Hill LLC investment including $1.5 million of additional contributions by the Agency, offset by a $7.0
million impairment loss on the investment, $666,000 in distributions to the Agency and $345,000 share
of loss during the fiscal year.

Accounts receivable and other assets include outstanding amounts at June 30, 2013 related to utility
usage at Devens, grants, NMTC company management fees and reimbursement of expenses, Devens
operating fces, real estate consulting services, lease receivables, prepaid insurance and other
miscellaneous receivables. The $1.4 million increase in accounts receivable and other assets is mainly
related to the increase in grants receivable for infrastructure improvements related to the Devens
Regional Dispatch Center and Taunton Development MassDevelopment Corporation (“Taunton Corp.”).



As a result of implementing the provisions of GASB 65 Iiems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilifies, deferred financing costs which represented bond financing expenses associated with the
Electric System Utility bonds and the M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue bonds of $7,355,141 and
deferred expenses related to tenant related expenses for broker commissions and legal and accounting
fees of $2,004,156 were retroactively fully amortized. The Agency restated its fiscal year 2012
beginning net position by a reduction of $9,359,297.

Assets held for sale relates to the Taunton Corp. capital assets. In January 2012, the Agency, in
partnership with Taunton Development Corporation (*“T'DC”), purchased from the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts the former Dever State School core campus in Taunton, MA. The property consists of
approximately 220 acres with approximately 40 dilapidated buildings and underground tunnels. A new
non-profit corporation was formed to take title and redevelop the property. Redevelopment of the
property includes expansion of the existing 150 acres of the Myles Standish Industrial Park and
development of a life science park including a training/education center. The increase of $6.1 million is
related to the redevelopment work done during fiscal year 2013,

Capital assets relate to the infrastructure and equipment assets for Devens, 100 Cambridge Street, Fall
River and Springfield properties. The decrease of $8.7 million from 2012 to 2013 is mainly related to
$12.1 million of depreciation expense during the fiscal year offset by an increase of $3.6 million in
capital assets mainly related to Devens infrastructure improvements. See Note 9 to the financial
statements for more information on capital assets.

Deferred Outfiows of Resources

In accordance with GASB 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments (“GASB
53”), the $15.9 million and $21.6 million deferred outflows of resources represent the deferral of
possible future payments related to the unrealized negative market value of the
MassDevelopment/Saltonstall Building Redevelopment Corporation (“M/SBRC”) swap with Lehman
Brothers Special Financing, Inc. as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Liabilities

The Agency’s current liabilities consist of accounts payable and accrued expenses, current portion of
bonds payable, current advances from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, accrued interest payable
and project escrow payables. Noncurrent liabilities consist of bonds payable, loans payable, advances
from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, M/SBRC interest rate swap, and other liabilities.

The increase of $535,000 in current liabilities from 2012 to 2013 is mainly related to an increase in
accounts payable and accrued expenses due to increased accruals for a Devens real estate tax overlay
account and increased accruals for construction activity related to Taunton Corp., offset by a decrease in
the current portion of bonds payable. The decrease of $13.5 million in noncurrent liabilities from 2012
to 2013 is mainly related to a decrease in bonds payable due to principal payments during the fiscal year,
a decrease in the unrealized negative market value of the M/SBRC interest rate swap, and a decrease in
advances from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Agency was originally given a $3.8 million
one-time grant for Devens municipal services. Management has had conversations with the
Commonwealth regarding this liability and the Commonwealth has verbally confirmed that the funds are
not due to the Commonwealth, therefore, the $3.8 million was re-classified as contributions from the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as
of June 30, 2013.
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Bonds and Loans Payable
The following itemizes the bonds and loans payable on the books of the Agency at the end of June 30:

2013 2012
M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue bonds $ 162,910,000 $ 165,810,000
Devens Flectric System Utility bonds 7.805,000 8,145,000
Taunton an-Taunton Development Corporation 25,000 -
Net premium 13,284 14,476
Net discount ' (1.452,417) (1,561,477)

$ 169,300,867  $ 172,407,999

Bonds payable decreased $3.1 million from 2012 to 2013 mainly due to principal payments of $2.9
million on the M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue bonds and $340,000 on the Devens Electric System
Utility bonds.

In an effort to lower the weighted average interest rate on the bonds, the Agency refunded the Devens
Electric System Revenue Bonds, Serics 2001 (“Series 2001 Bonds) in December 2011 and issued the
Devens Electric System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 (“Series 2011 Bonds™). Principal of
$8,775,000 was repaid in relation to the Series 2001 Bonds and new principal of $8,145,000 was
refunded. The Agency did not issue any new debt in fiscal year 2013.

M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue Bonds

The Agency issued $195.8 million of revenue bonds in May of 2002 to finance the 100 Cambridge
Street Project. The bond proceeds are subject to a mortgage and trust agreement dated April 1, 2002
between the Agency, M/SBRC and the Trustees and, as such, may only be expended on costs of
constructing the Project. In addition, revenues generated through rents and asset sales are restricted as to
use under the trust agreement.

The mortgage and trust agreement required the establishment of specific reserve funds including the
Replacement Reserve Fund, Project Reserve Fund and Debt Service Reserve Fund. As of June 30,
2013, the balances in these funds were $1.0 million, $9.0 million and $13.3 million, respectively. As of
June 30, 2012, the balances in these funds were $0.8 million, $7.4 million and $13.3 million,
respectively.

The M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue Bonds agreement provides for, among other requirements, the
maintenance of a minimum senior debt service coverage ratio and certain other covenants. As of June
30, 2013 and 2012, the necessary debt service coverage ratio was met.

Devens Electric System Utility Bond

During fiscal vear 2001, the Agency issued Series 2001 Bonds for the Devens project which totaled
$10.6 Million. The Agency acquired the electric transmission and distribution facilities (the “Electric
System”) serving Devens from the Army in 1996. The Electric System includes four transmission
substations that interconnect Devens with the regional transmission system serving New England, as
well as electric distribution facilities serving the area within Devens. The Series 2001 Bonds were used



to finance the design, construction, installation and associated costs of certain capital improvements to
the Electric System at Devens.

In an effort to lower the weighted average interest rate on the bonds, the Agency refunded the bonds in
December 2011 and issued the Series 2011 Bonds. Principal of $8,775,000 was repaid in relation to the
Series 2001 Bonds and new principal of $8,145,000 was issued.

The Devens Electric System Utility Bond agreement requires the maintenance of a minimum debt
service coverage ratio. Failure to comply with the minimum debt service covenant does not constitute a
default as long as the Agency complies with specific requirements included in the agreement. As of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, the necessary debt service coverage was met.

See Note 11 to the financial statements for more information on bonds payable.

Advances from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Advances from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts consist of the following at the end of June 30:

2013 2012
Massachusetis Water Abatement Trust Loan $10,922,956  $11,360,614
Commonwealth Advance for Devens Municipal Services - 3,750,000

$ 10,922,956  $ 15,110,614

Massachusetts Water Abatement Trust Loan

The Massachusetts Water Abatement Trust issued a loan to the Agency to construct a wastewater
treatment facility at Devens. This loan will be paid back to the trust through revenues generated from
wastewater processing from Devens and surrounding communities. The Agency and the
Commonwealth have entered into a contract providing that the Commonwealth shall pay contract
assistance on behalf of the Agency with respect to partial debt service on this loan.

The Massachusetts Water Abatement Trust Loan agreement requires the maintenance of an adequate
annual debt service coverage ratio. As of June 30, 2013, the necessary debt service coverage was met.
As of June 30, 2012, the necessary debt service coverage was not met, however failure to comply with
the annual debt service coverage ratio does not constitute a default, as long as the Agency complies with
specific requirements included in the agreement. In September 2012, the Agency funded the shortfall
necessary to bring the ratio into compliance.

Commonwealth Advance for Devens Municipal Services

In 1997, the Agency received a one-time grant from the Commonwealth of $3.8 million for
administration and provision of municipal services at Devens. Management has had conversations with
the Commonwealth regarding this liability and the Commonwealth has verbally confirmed that the funds
are not due to the Commonwealth, therefore, the $3.8 million was re-classified as contributions from the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as
of June 30, 2013.

See Note 13 to the financial statements for more information on advances from the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. :



Net Position

Net position represents the residual interest in the Agency’s assets plus deferred outflows of resources
after all labilities plus deferred inflows of resources are deducted. The Agency’s net position was as
follows at June 30:

2013 2012
{As restated)
Net investment in capital assets $ 74,791,780 $ 70,372,295
Restricted net assets 142,728,567 159,876,502
Unrestricted net assefs 176,146,460 178,614,264

$ 393,666,807 $408,863,061

The decrease in net position of approximately $15.0 million from 2012 to 2013 was a combination of a
$7.3 million operating loss mainly due to an impairment loss on joint ventures, $9.7 million of interest
expense, $6.1 million of Cultural Facilities grant awards, $5.4 million of Predevelopment and
Brownfield grant awards, and a $3.0 million grant award to the Massachusetts Cultural Council, offset
by $9.7 million in contributions from the Commonwealth and $6.1 million in capital grant revenue.

Revenues and Expenses

2013 2012

(As restated)

Operating revenues $ 74,280,171 $ 76,948,741
Operating expenses (81,561,636) (77.646,623)
Operating loss (7.281,465) (697.882)
Nonoperating expenses, net (7,880,387) (7,838,222)
Capital contributions, net (34,402) (10,197,078)
Decrease in net position $ (15,196,254) $ (18,733,182)
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Operating Revenues

2013 2012
Devens operating fees $ 30,906,793 $31,963,872
Interest on loans 5,556,250 4,934,927
Bond issuance and New Markets Tax Credit fees 9,375,532 9,013,972
Other operating income 5,433,264 6,090,925
Gains on sale of real estate, net 297,939 2,697,961
M/SBRC rent and other income 22,710,393 22,247,084

§ 74,280,171 $ 76,948,741

Operating revenues decreased approximately $2.7 million from 2012 to 2013. The decrease is mainly
related to a decrease of $1.1 million in Devens operating fees and a $2.4 million decrease in gains on
sale of real estate, net.

Devens operating fees, which include utility income and real estate taxes, are an important component of
the Agency’s operating revenue. The Agency owns the utility systems at Devens and provides
electricity, natural gas, water and sewer services to the Devens community. The utility staff works in
conjunction with operations and maintenance contractors to maintain, upgrade and expand the utility
systems. The current systems consist of five electrical substations, approximately 73 miles of
distribution power lines, three miles of transmission power lines, four wells and pumping stations,
approximately 50 miles of water line, 32 miles of natural gas pipeline, a wastewater treatment facility,
six sewer lift stations and 50 miles of sewer. Devens operating fees decreased $1.1 million from 2012 to
2013 primarily due to lower electric income due to lower energy costs that are passed through to the
customers of the system.

Bond issuance fees and NMTC fees represent revenue generated by the Agency as a conduit issuer of
taxable and fax-exempt bonds or fees related to the allocation of federal New Markets Tax Credits. Fees
increased approximately $361,000 from 2012 to 2013 due to a combination of increased bond issuance
fees earned offset by decreased NMTC fees collected due to fewer closings within the NMTC program
during fiscal year 2013.

Other operating income mainly consists of real estate advisory service fees and lease income for leased
property at Fall River and Springfield and other miscellaneous operating revenues. The decrease of
approximately $658,000 from 2012 to 2013 is principally related to a decrease in miscellaneous
revenues due to a payment received from an Evergreen legal settlement in fiscal year 2012, offset by
reimbursements from the Regional Dispatch Center for expenses paid by the Agency on its behalf,

The gains on sale of real estate, net of approximately $297,000 in fiscal year 2013 mainly relate to a lot
sale at the Taunton property and three lot sales at Devens, MA during the fiscal year. There was an
additional lot sale at Devens, MA during the fiscal year and a gain of approximately $288,000 was
deferred due to a repurchase clause in the purchase and sale agreement. The gain on the sale will be
recognized once the conditions in the repurchase clause are satisfied.

The gains on sale of real estate, net of $2.7 million in fiscal year 2012 relates to the sales of seven lots at
Devens, MA during the fiscal year. There was an additional lot sale at Devens, MA during the fiscal
vear and a gain of approximately $469,000 was deferred due to a repurchase clause in the purchase and
sale agreement. This gain on sale is still being deferred as of June 30, 2013 as the sale will be

recognized once the conditions in the repurchase clause are satisfied.
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M/SBRC rent and other income increased approximately $463,000 from 2012 to 2013, During fiscal
years 2013 and 2012, the 100 Cambridge Street Project earned $22.7 million and $22.2 million,
respectively, from the leased office tower occupancy, retail revenue, and allocated parking spaces. The
increase of approximately $463,000 from 2012 to 2013 is mainly due to increased real estate tax
reimbursements, private retail rents and garage income.

Operating Expenses
2013 2012

(As restated)
Salaries and related employee expenses $ 16,302,566 $ 16,122,653
Property, maintenance and utilities 31,822,676 33,102,516
General and administrative 5,060,358 2,635,820
Professional and legal fees 6,851,990 6,079,733
Provision for loan loss 720,255 2,837,544
Provision for Predevelopment and Browntfield receivables 1,337,426 126,623
Write-off of Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables 24,500 73,414
Depreciation and amortization 12,063,562 12,057,597
Impairment loss on joint ventures 7,000,000 4,506,449
Loss on share of joint ventures 378,303 104,274

$ 81,561,636 $ 77,646,623

Operating expenses increased approximately $3.9 million from 2012 to 2013. The increase is due
mainly to a combination of increases in impairment loss on joint ventures, general and administrative
expenses and provision for Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables, offset by decreases in provision
for loan loss and property, maintenance and utilities expenses.

Property, maintenance and utilities decreased approximately $1.3 million from 2012 to 2013 primarily
as a result of decreased electric utility purchases due to a decrease in energy costs during the fiscal year.

General and administrative expenses increased approximately $2.4 million from 2012 to 2013 mainly
due to the reversal of a bad debt of approximately $1.5 million in fiscal year 2012 that was fully
reserved in fiscal year 2011. The related real estate tax amount was collected during fiscal year 2012 as
part of a settlement agreement (refer to Note 19 - Legal Matters).

Provision for loan loss represents the expense necessary to maintain an adequate allowance for loan
losses. The provision decreased approximately $2.1 million from 2012 to 2013 mainly related to a
decreased provision for the Emerging Technology Fund for fiscal year 2013 as compared to fiscal year
2012 due to fewer loan disbursements and loan write-offs during fiscal year 2013.

The provision for Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables represents the allowance necessary to
absorb probable losses of existing awards that are expected to become uncollectible. The provision
increased approximately $1.2 million {rom 2012 to 2013 due to increased advances related to the
Brownfield Fund receivables during the fiscal year.

Impairment loss on joint ventures mainly represents a $7.0 million and $4.0 million impairment loss
recognized on the Agency’s investment in Hospital Hill LLC in fiscal year 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Projections related to the investment as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 show that it is not probable that the
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current investment balance will be recoverable from distributions from future sales due to the decline in
the market and additional capital required to improve the marketability of the property. Therefore, the
Agency recognized a $7.0 million and $4.0 million impairment loss in fiscal years 2013 and 2012,
respectively, to write the investment down to the amount expected to be recovered through its net cash
flow from the project.

Non-operating (Expenses) Revenues
2013 2012
(As restated)

[nvestment income $ 1,392,791 $ 2,159,582
Contract assistance 444,172 456,711
Interest expense (9,716,062) (9,990,479)
Amortization of bond discount, net (109,059) (170,475)
Financing costs (150) (293,561)
Other ncome 107,921 -

$ (7,880,387) $ (7.838.222)

Non-operating (expenses) revenues consists mainly of investment income, contract assistance, interest
expense, amortization of bond discount, net and financing costs. The total non-operating (expenses)
revenues remained fairly consistent from 2012 to 2013.

Investment income decreased approximately $767,000 from 2012 to 2013 mainly due to decreased
earnings on investments due to decreased average investment balances and decreased annualized yields
during fiscal year 2013 and a reduction of the reserve held on an investment that is currently in the
liquidation process. The reserve was reduced again during the fiscal year because the Agency continues
to receive cash disbursements from the investment.

Contract assistance represents the debt service for the $13.7 million Massachusetts Department of
Environmental Protection loan to build a wastewater treatment plant at Devens (“DEP loan™). The debt
services payments are made by the Commonwealth directly and are recognized as non-operating income
by the Agency.

Interest expense of $9.7 million and $10.0 million was recognized in 2013 and 2012, respectively. The
decrease of approximately $274,000 is mainly related to the decrease in interest expense related to the
Electric System utility bonds due to the refinancing of the bonds in fiscal year 2012. Interest expense
includes interest for the 1) M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue bonds issued to fund construction
expenses for the 100 Cambridge Street Project, 2) Electric System Utility bonds issued for the
acquisition of the electric transmission and distribution facility at Devens, and 3) Massachusetts Water
Abatement Trust for the wastewater treatment plant at Devens.

Due to the adoption of GASB 65 Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities during fiscal vear
2013, the Agency restated its fiscal year 2012 beginning net position as deferred financing costs and
deferred expenses were retroactively fully amortized to fiscal year 2011. Therefore, financing costs
related to the refinanced Electric System utility bonds were fully expensed during fiscal year 2013.
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Capital Contributions and Awards

2013 2012

Contributions from the Commonwealh of Massachusetts $ 9,725,290 $ 4,197,283
Capital grant revenue 6,073,704 623,182
Predevelopment and Brownfield awards (5,407,576) (4,301,163)
Cultural Facilities grant awards (6,095,797) (5.917,731)
Advanced Manufacturing grant awards (83,462) -
Massachusetts Cultural Council grant award (3,000,000) (3,000,000}
Commonwealth of Massachusetts grant awards (1,000,000) (1,475,000)
Capital grant awards (246,561) (323,649)

$  (34,402)  $(10,197,078)

Capital contributions and awards increased approximately $10.2 million from 2012 to 2013 mainly due
to increased contributions from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and capital grant revenue earned
during fiscal year 2013.

Contributions from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts of $9.7 million and $4.2 million were
recognized in fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively. The fiscal year 2013 and 2012 amounts are
comprised of $5.0 million and $2.9 million for the Cultural Facilities Fund and $4.5 million and $1.3
million for the Devens Fund for capital infrastructure improvements at Devens, respectively. In June of
1997 the Agency received a one-time grant of approximately $3.8 million for administration and
provision of municipal services at Devens. Management has had conversations with the Commonwealth
regarding this liability and the Commonwealth has verbally confirmed that the funds are not due to the
Commonwealth, therefore, the $3.8 million was re-classified as contributions from the Commonwealth
of Massachusetts in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as of June 30, 2013,

Capital grant revenue of approximately $6.1 million was recognized in fiscal year 2013. This was
mainly comprised of $4.3 million of grant reimbursements for the Taunton property development
(MassWorks and EDA grants) and $1.2 million for the Devens regional dispatch center development.
Capital grant revenue of approximately $623,000 was recognized in fiscal year 2012 and was mainly
comprised of $306,000 of grant reimbursements for the Taunton property development and $159,000 for
the Devens regional dispatch center development.

The Agency disbursed $3.0 million to the Massachusetts Cultural Council from the Cultural Facilities
Fund in fiscal years 2013 and 2012,

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts grant award of $1.0 million in fiscal year 2013 is related to a
award disbursed to the Executive Office of Housing and Economic Development (“EOHED”) to assist
with operating funds for fiscal year 2013. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts grant awards of $1.5
million relates to $475,000 and $1.0 million disbursed to the Community Service 501(c) 3 Loan Fund
and the EOHED, respectively, to help offset budget cuts for fiscal year 2012.

Requests for Additional Information

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
information should be addressed to Simon Gerlin, CFO, Massachusetts Development Finance Agency,
99 High Street, 11" Floor, Boston, MA. 02110.
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Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2013 and 2612
2013 2012
Assets {As restated)
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 3 10,357,365 $ 9,102,198
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted for wse 17,343,692 20918 859
Investments 91,273,738 121,215,959
Loans receivable, net 14,936,929 13,174,142
Interest receivable 3,356,985 2,899.148
Accountis receivable and other assets {nef of allowance of $1,263,140 and $1,072 070 at
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively) 10,652,340 9282742
Interest in life insurance contract - 307,067
Due from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 577,327 493,140
Project escrow deposits 1,915,106 2,114.252
Assets held for sale 138,840 138,840
Total current assets 150,752,322 179,646,347
Noncurrent assets
Cash and cash equivalents for capital use 12,609,158 12,511,126
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted for wse 18,917,340 18,074,925
Investments 79,030,028 64,695,874
Investment in joint ventures 7,356,173 13,467,816
Loeans receivable {net of allowance of $14,652,092 and $15,615,993 at
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively) 80,766,972 80,430,146
Predevelopment and Brownfield receivable, net 1,103,414 1,595,580
Assets held for sale 6,815,938 709,597
Capital assets, net 232,410,362 241,157,750
Total noncurrent assets 439 009,585 432,582,814
Total assets 589,761,907 612,229,161
Beferred QOutflows of Resources
Deferred outflow interest rate swap 15,943,560 21,643,394
Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,737,367 6.439.700
Current portion of bonds payable 2,695,600 3,240 600
Advances from the Commonwealth of Massachusetis 454,756 437,657
Accrued interest payable 2,654,654 2,685,005
Project escrow payable 1,925,331 2,130,134
Total crrrent Nabilities 15,467,108 14,932,496
Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable 166,580,867 169,167,999
Loans payable 25,600 -
Advances from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 10,468,200 14,672,957
Interest rate swap 15,943,560 21,643,394
Other liabilities 3,553,825 4,502,648
‘T otal noncurreat liabilities 196,571,552 210,676,998
Total lighilities 212,038,660 225,009,494
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 74,791,780 10,372,295
Restricted 142,728,567 159,876,502
Unrestricted 176,146 460 178,614,264
Total net position 393,666,807 408,863,061
Total liabilities and net position 3 605,705,467 $ 633,872,555

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Massachusetts Development Finance Agency

{Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachuseits)
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
{As restated)
Revenues
Operating revenues
Devens operating revenue $ 30,506,793 $ 31963872
Interest on loans 5,356,250 4,934,927
Bond issuance and New Markets Tax Credit fecs 6,375,532 9,013,972
Other 5,433,264 6,090,923
Gains on sale ofreal estate, net 267,939 2,697,961
M/SBRC and otherrevenue 227710,393 22,247,084
Total operating revenues 74,280,171 76,948,741
Expenses
Operating expenses
Salaries and related employee expenses 16,302,566 16,122,653
Property, maintenance and utilities 31,822,676 33,102,516
General and administrative 5.060,358 2,635,820
Professional and legal fees 6,851,990 6,079,733
Provision for loan loss 720,255 2,837,544
Provision for Predevelopment and Brownfiekl receivables 1,337,426 126,623
Write-off of Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables, net 24,500 73,414
Depreciation and amortization 12,063,562 12,057,597
Impainment loss on joint ventures 7.000,000 4,506,449
Loss on share of joint venfures 378,303 104,274
Total operating expenses 81,561,636 77,646,623
Operating loss (7,281,465} {697,882)
Nonoperating (expenses) revenues
Investment income 1,392,791 2,159,582
Contract assistance 444 172 456,711
Interest cxpense 9,716,062) (9,990,479
Amoriization of bond discount, net (109,059 (170,475}
Financing costs {150y (293,561}
Other 107,921 -
Nonoperating expenses, net {7.880,387) (7,838,222}
Loss before capital contributions and awards (15,161,852} (8,536,104}
Contributions fromthe Commonwealth of Massachusetts 9,725,290 4,197,283
Capital grant revenue 6,073,704 623,182
Predevelopment and Brownfield awards (5,407,576) (4,301,163)
Cultural Facilities grant awards (6,095,797) (3,917,731)
Advanced Manufacturing grant awards (83,462) -
Massachusetts Cultural Council grant award (3,000,600) (3,000,060)
Commonwealth of Massachusetts grant awards (1,000,000} (1,475,000}
Capital grant awards {246,561) (323,649}
Decrease in net position {15,196,254) (18,733,182)
Net position
Net position - beginning of year 408,863,061 427,596,243
Net position - end of year $ 393,666,807 $ 408,863,061

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from inferest on loans
Receipts from Devens operating income
Receipts from bond issuance fees
Receipts from other operating income
Receipts frem rent and other income
Payment of salaries and related employees expenses
Payment of rent, maintenance and utilities
Payment of general and administration expenses
Payment of professional and legal fees
Sccurity deposits
Project escrows, asset
. Project escrows, Hability
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flews from nencapital financing activities
Receipts for other non operating income
Net cash previded by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Acquisition of capital assets

Payment of bond issuance costs

Principal payments on debt obligations

Principat advances on debt obligations

Proceeds from sale of assets

Receipts from federal capital contributions

Payment of Predevelopment and Brownfield grant awards
Payment of Cultural Facilities grant awards

Payment of Commonwealtlt of Massachusetts grant awards
Payment of Advanced Manudacturing grant awards
Payment of Massachusetts Cultural Council grant award
Payment of capital grant

Receipts of contributions from the Commeonwealth of Massachusetts

Payment of interest
Net cash wsed by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments
Sales of investments
Receipt of interest from life insurance contract
Investments in joint venture
Distributions from joint ventures
Disbursements of loans
Collections and recoveries of foans
Payment of Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables
Advance of Predevelopment and Browntield receivables
Receipts of investment income

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activity

Contract assistance

investments in joint ventures

Contributions from the Commonwealth

Interest expense

Unrealized foss on investments

Capital additions included in accownts payable

2013 2012
{As restated)
5,064,246 5 4,456,283
32,327,102 31,845,795
9,752,429 8,705,927
3,967,774 6,195,406
22,315,298 22,235,068
(16,389,903 (16,152,152
(32,018,754) (33.814,8%6)
(4,536,556} (2,989.295)
(6,940,367} (6,204,941}
(34,250) 13,710
199 146 180,122
(204,801 {178,562)
13,501,362 14,292,465
92,751 24,554
92,751 24,554
(8,340.496) {2,756,519)
(150) {293,561)
(3,631,595) (10,162,182)
- 8,145,000
851,669 3,802.550
4,758,160 349,641
(5,407,576) (4,461,318)
(6,095,797} (5.917,731)
(1,000,000 (1,475,000}
{83,462) -
{3,000,000) (3,000,000}
{246,561) (323,649)
4,576,667 6,296,577
(9.341,860) (9,629,259)

{26,961,601)

719,425 451)

(334,200,916}

(248,411,171)

349,788,506 267,303,069
307,650 .
(2,011,109) (731,575)
666,493 259,360
(19,992,829) (32,780,018)
17,172,961 17,168,973
510,637 368,094
(1,659,493) (655.380)
1,605,435 2,337,177
12,187,335 4,839,520
{1,179.553) (248,903)
60,607,108 60,856,011
59,427,555 $ 60,607,108
444,172 $ 456,711
3,093 27,034
(4,959,396) 2,169,389
398,109 423,157
(178.477) (239.813)
1,911,264 463,535

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
{(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

provided by operating activities

Bad debt

Depreciation and amortization

Gain on disposal of redeveloped property
Provision and write-off for loans and

Predevelopment and Brown{ield receivables, net

Loss on share of joint ventures
impairment loss on joint ventures

Changes in assets and liabilities

Project escrows - asset

Security deposits

Interest receivable

Accounts receivable and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Project escrows - liability

Deferred revenue

Total adjus tments

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2013

{7.281,465)

575,147
12,063,562
(297,939)

2,082,181
378,303
7,000,000

199,146
(34,250)
(492,004)
(314,585)
(79,198)
(204,803)
(92,733)

20,782,827

2012
(As restated)

& {657,882}

(1,319.205)
12,057,597
(2,697,961)

3,037,581
104,274
4,506,449

180,122
13,710
(478,644)
715,957
(890,764)
(178.562)
(60,207)

$

13,501,362

14,990,347

i8

$ 14,292,465




Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

1. Authorizing Legislation

Massachusetts Development Finance Agency (the “Agency” or “MDFA”™) was created on
September 30, 1998 pursuant to Chapter 23G of Massachusetts General Laws (Chapter 289 of
the Acts of 1998). The Agency is a body corporate and politic instrumentality and was created
from the statutory merger of, and is the legal successor in all respects to, two previous existing
instrumentalities, the Massachusetts Government Land Bank (created in 1975 under Chapter 212
of the Acts of 1975) and the Massachusetts Industrial Finance Agency (created 1978 pursuant to
chapter 23A of the Massachusetts General Laws). Other powers of the Agency are also set forth
in Massachusetts General Law’s Chapter 40D (with respect to the issuance of tax-exempt bonds)
and chapter 498 of the Acts of 1993, as amended (with respect to the redevelopment of the
former Fort Devens, a closed federal military base). The purpose of the Agency is to stimulate
economic growth, increase employment, eradicate blight, promote prosperity and help build
communities throughout the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth™). 1t does
this through its powers to issue tax-exempt bonds for the benefit of industrial and commercial
entities, institutions, health care and housing facilities and public bodies; making loans and
providing credit to eligible borrowers in accordance with its public purposes; and aiding public
and private enterprises in the redevelopment of surplus federal and state property and other
blighted, open, underdeveloped property. It also administers specific statutory funds directed at
certain economic development needs in the Commonwealth, such as the Massachusetts Export
Finance Fund, the Emerging Technology Fund, the Cultural Facilities Fund, the Credit
Enhancement of Charter School Facilities Program and the Brownfields Redevelopment Fund.
The Agency also has the power to issue debt for the redevelopment of the former Fort Devens
(“Pevens™).

The Agency is governed by an eleven member Board of Directors, nine of whom are appointed
directly by the governor and two of whom are public officials, or their designees, serving ex-
officio. The Agency is considered a component unit of the Commonwealth for general purpose
financial statement reporting purposes.

In accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, and GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are
Component Units-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14, the financial statements must
present the organization and its component units. The Agency is considered a component unit of
the Commonwealth. Additionally, the Agency has the following blended component units:

MassDevelopment/Saltonstall Building Redevelopment Corporation

The Commonwealth enacted special legislation, Chapter 237 of the Act of 2000 of the
Commonwealth (the “Project Legislation™) which authorized the Agency to design and
redevelop the office building located at 100 Cambridge Street in Boston, Massachusetts (the
“Project™). This legislation created the MassDevelopment/Saltonstall Building Redevelopment
Corporation (the “100 Cambridge Street Project” or “M/SBRC”). Redevelopment of the site
included the construction of approximately 34,500 square feet of new retail space and 75 new
residential condominium units, 19 of which are affordable housing units by agreement with the
City of Boston. The garage was renovated to accommodate approximately 415 vehicles.
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Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts})
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

The Project also included construction of a public memorial garden and other public amenities
on the site. M/SBRC entered into a 50 year ground lease with the Commonwealth, which
includes an option to extend for two 15 year periods. Simultaneously, M/SBRC entered into a 50
vear office lease with the Commonwealth as lessee, which includes an option to extend the lease
for two 15 year periods. The net position of M/SBRC was approximately a deficit of $61.3
million and $51.8 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Please also refer to
Footnote 16 Segment Reporting.

Taunton Development Corporation

- In January 2012, the Agency, in partnership with Taunton Development Corporation (“TDC”),
purchased from the Commonwealth the former Dever State School core campus in Taunton,
MA. The property consists of approximately 220 acres with approximately 40 dilapidated
buildings and underground tunnels. A new non-profit corporation called Taunton Development
MassDevelopment Corporation (“Taunton Corp”) was formed to own and redevelop the
property. Redevelopment of the property includes expansion of the existing 150 acres of the
Myles Standish Industrial Park and development of a life science park including a
training/education center. Grants have been provided by the Commonwealth through Massworks
and the Economic Development Administration. Taunton Corp is included in the conseolidated
financial statements of the Agency as the majority of the Taunton Corp board members are
executives of the Agency. The Agency also provides consultant services related to the
redevelopment of the property and financial services for the Taunton Corp. The net position of
Taunton Corp. was approximately $4.8 million and $379,000 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting and Reporting Standards :

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”), as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™), codification section 2100.

The GASB defines the basic financial statements of a business type activity as the: statement of net
position, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, the statement of cash flows,
and management’s discussion and analysis as required supplemental information. The statement
of net position is presented to illustrate both the current and noncurrent balances of each asset and
liability. All revenues and expenses are classified as either operating or nonoperating activities in
the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Operating activities are those that
support the mission and purpose of the Agency. Nonoperating activities represent transactions that
are capital, investing, legislative or regulated in nature.

20



Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
{Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

Net position represents the residual interest in the Agency's assets plus deferred outflows of
resources after liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources are deducted and consist of: net
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted, as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction
or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets or related debt are included in this component of net position.

Restricted

Nonexpendable — Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations such that the
Agency maintains them permanently. For years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the
Agency did not have any nonexpendable restricted net position.

Expendable — Net position whose use by the Agency is subject to externally imposed
stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the Agency pursuant to those stipulations or
that expire by the passage of time.  Such assets include the Agency’s bond construction
funds on hand.

Net position is reported as restricted when there are third party limitations (statutory,
contractual or bond covenant) on its use.

Unrestricted

Net position that is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. Unrestricted net
position may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board
or Directors or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Principles of Consclidation
The financial statements include the Agency and its component units. All significant inter-entity
transactions and accounts have been eliminated.
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Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
{Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Under the accrual
basis, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when obligations are
incurred or when benefits are received.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and highly liquid investments with maturities
of three months or less at acquisition. Current cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted
funds available for general operating purposes and general fund mortgage insurance guarantees.
Current cash and cash equivalents-restricted for use consist of available funds for current
operations related to the Devens Electric Utility and M/SBRC segments of the Agency.
Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents for capital use consist of funds available for future capital
improvements. Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents-restricted for use consist of funds
available for future debt service payments, project reserves and future operations when there are
not sufficient funds available from current operations.

Investments

The Corporation’s investments with maturity dates of greater than one year at the time of
purchase are reported at fair value vsing quoted market price, Fair value is defined by GASB
Statement No. 31, Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, as the amount at which a
financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. All investment income, including changes in the fair value of
investments, is reported as revenue in the accompanying statements of revenue, expenses and
changes in net position except for the guaranteed investment contract that is reported at contract
value. Contract value represents contributions made under the contract plus accrued interest.

The primary objectives of the Agency’s investment policy are to ensure preservation of capital,
to grow funds available to meet the expanding needs of lending capital in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, to ensure liquidity of investments to meet current and estimated cash flow needs
by investing in instruments with structured maturities that are readily marketable and to provide
maximum yield while maintaining safety and liquidity. The maturities of investments range
from less than one year to greater than five years. Investments may include money market funds
with maturities of three months or less. These money market funds are classified as investments
since they are held for the primary purpose of meeting some of the Agency’s investment
objectives.
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Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
{Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Loans Receivable and Predevelopment and Brownfield Receivable, net

Loans receivable consist of loans issued by the Agency for various economic development
programs. Predevelopment and Brownfield receivable consist of loans issued by the Agency to
finance early stage project costs (i.e. architectural and engineering costs) which are necessary to
advance a project to the construction stage.

These loans receivable are stated at principal amount outstanding, net of a provision for loan
loss. Loans are charged against the provision for loan loss when the Agency believes the
collectibility of the principal is unlikely. The provision for loan loss is an amount that the
Agency believes will be adequate to absorb possible loan losses of existing loans that are
expected to become uncollectible.

Investment in Joint Ventures

The Agency accounts for its participating interest in its joint ventures using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is carried at cost and adjusted for the
Agency’s share of net income or loss, cash contributions or distributions to and from its joint
ventures and impairment loss on the joint ventures. Any impairment loss represents a write
down to the investment as projections related to the investment show that it is not probable that
the investment balance will be recoverable from distributions from future sales.

Accounts Receivable and Other Assets

The Agency evaluates the collectibility of leases, utility and other accounts receivable after
considering payment history. Although collection efforts continue, the Agency charges off any
receivable balance that is deemed unlikely to be collected.

Interest Receivable
Interest receivable represents the amount of interest revenue that was earned, but not yet been
received by the end of the fiscal year in relation to loans receivable and investments.

Interest income on loans is recognized as earned. For loans receivable with interest payments in
arrears, the Agency continues to accrue interest until such time as the loan agreement is
restructured or the interest receivable is deemed to be uncollectible. When loans are
restructured, interest payments in arrears, net of any amounts deemed uncollectible, are typically
aggregated with the outstanding principal balance and interest is accrued on the new principal
balance.

Project Escrows

The Agency holds funds consisting of cash and investments as collateral for mortgages
receivable and as a source of payment for borrowers’ obligations including tax and insurance
payments. These amounts are recorded at market value and are held in separate bank accounts
under the borrowers’ tax identification numbers.
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Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
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The Agency is also the administrator of the Short-Term Asset Reserve Fund (“STAR Fund”™).
The STAR Fund is an investment fund that is managed like a money market fund and invests

in short-term, high-quality securities, and is available for the investment of bond proceeds of the
Agency’s client institutions. The STAR Fund is designed to preserve principal, provide daily
liquidity, and earn a high level of income. The STAR Fund operates on a calendar year-end basis
and is audited annually by a third party. Except for the Agency’s investments in the STAR Fund,
the accounts and investment results of the STAR Fund are not included in the Agency’s
consolidated financial statements.

Interest Capitalization

The Agency may capitalize certain interest associated with borrowed funds for specific projects,
less any interest earned on temporary investment of the proceeds of such borrowings during the
period of construction. No interest was capitalized during fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

Capital Assets, Net

Capital assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. The Agency’s threshold for
classification of a capital asset is $5,000. Depreciation is provided for using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of the asset ranging from 1 to 40 years as noted below:

Depreciable

Years
Land N/A
Building 20-40
Buildings/land/tenant improvements 1-20
Infrastructure 5-20
Equipment 3-10
Office equipment 3-5
Construction in progress N/A
Assets held for sake ' N/A

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred while betterments and additions
are capitalized. When assets are sold or retired, their cost and related accumulated depreciation
are removed from the Agency’s accounts and any gain or foss is recognized.

Assets Held for Sale

Certain properties are redeveloped with the intent to ultimately sell the asset to a third party.
When such assets are substantially complete and ready for sale, the capitalized investment is
reclassified to assets held for sale.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

The Agency accrues expenses on a monthly basis based on current contracts and invoices. The
Agency acerues amounts for compensated absences as earned up to certain limitations. The
accrued balance represents vacation amounts payable to employees upon termination of
employment.
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Bonds Payable _

Bonds are recorded at date of issuance, net of related premium or discount amounts. Bond
premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted, respectively, over the term of the related
bond and these amounts are recorded as a component of non-operating expense.

Revenue Recognition

Application and processing fees for both tax exempt and taxable bonds are recorded as bond
issuance fee revenue on the date of closing on the bond. Debt servicing fees are recorded as
revenue upon receipt. These are fees that are collected for Agency assistance in bond closings.

Organizational fee income for the New Markets Tax Credit programs is recognized as New
Markets Tax Credit fees on the date of the closing of the related New Markets Tax Credit
program. This fee is a one-time cost associated with setting up and organizing the program.
Management fee income for the New Markets Tax Credit programs is recorded as services
related to managing the operations of the New Markets Tax Credit programs are performed.

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis for facility space rentals as it is earned.
Advanced receipts of rental income are classified as liabilities until earned. All leases are
operating leases. Rental income consists of base rent and reimbursements for certain operating
expenses. Rental income is mainly related to the M/SBRC, Fall River, Devens and Springfield
properties. Rental income is included in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position operating revenues Devens operating revenue, other, and M/SBRC and other revenue
line items.

Guarantee fees received for loans guaranteed by the Agency are deferred and recognized ratably
over the term of the guarantee agreement.

Capital grant revenue is recognized depending on the terms of the related grant. The Charter
School Grant revenue is recognized as Charter School loan guarantees are issued. The
Community Development Action Grant, Economic Development Grant, Growth Districts
Initiative Program Grant and the Massachusetts Opportunity Relocation and Expansion Jobs
Capital Program Grant revenues are recognized as funds are disbursed for the related grant
praject.

Contributions from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts are recognized according to the terms
of the related agreement. The Cultural Facilities Fund and Devens Fund infrastructure
improvement disbursements are reimbursement type grants and are recognized as qualifying
expenses are incurred.

Devens operating revenue consist of fees received for utilities, municipal services and leased
space and are recognized as earned.
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The Agency accrues monthly principal and interest reimbursements due under its contract with
the Commonwealth for debt service payments associated with the Devens Project Bonds and the
Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection loan and records these amounts as
contract assistance which is included in non-operating revenue.

Gains on sales of real estate are recognized as earned. Certain purchase and sale agreements
include a repurchase clause; therefore, these gains on sales will be recognized once the
conditions in the repurchase clauses are satisfied.

Provision for Loan Loss

Provision for loan loss represents the necessary expense to maintain an adequate allowance for
estimated loan losses. In determining the provision, the Agency evaluates each loan and
considers past performance history, collateral value, financial stability of the borrower and the
likelihood for foreclosure and such other factors as deemed necessary. The loan portfolio and
the Agency’s loan loss rating system are evaluated annually by management and an independent
consulting firm.

Provision for Predevelopment and Brownfield Receivables, net

Provision for Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables, net, represents the expense necessary
to maintain an adequate allowance for estimated losses of receivables that are expected to
become uncollectible.

Impairment Loss on Joint Ventures

Management analyzes its equity method investments to determine whether the amounts are
considered to be permanently impaired based upon its best estimates of the cash flows from the
investment. If a permanent impairment in carrying value exists, a provision to write down the
investment to the estimated cash flows realizable from the investment will be recorded in the
Agency’s financial statements. For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency
recognized an impairment loss of $7.0 million and $4.0 million, respectively, on its investment in
Hospital Hill LLC. The Agency also recognized an impairment loss of $506,449 on its
investment in Cape Ann Fisheries Development Corporation in fiscal year 2012.

Reclassification

Certain amounts previously reported in the 2012 financial statements have been reclassified to be
comparable to the 2013 presentation including a reclassification of $7,223,606 from current cash
and cash equivalents to current cash and cash equivalents-restricted for use as of June 30, 2012.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63 (GASB 63), Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, effective for the
Ageney’s fiscal vear beginning July 1, 2012. This statement establishes guidance for reporting
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and net position in a statement of
financial position. The adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on the
Agency’s financial statements other than to add this information to the statement of financial
position,
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In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 64 (GASB 64), Derivative Instruments:
Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions. GASB 64 is intended to clarify
whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the replacement of a swap counterparty
or a swap counterparty’s credit support provider. This statement sets forth criteria that establish
when the effective hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting should continue to be
applied. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2011. The adoption
of this standard did not have a significant impact on the Agency’s financial statements.

In April 2012, the GASB issued GASB 65, frems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,
effective for the Agency’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013. This statement clarifies the
appropriate reporting of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources to
ensure consistency in financial reporting. The Agency implemented this statement during fiscal
year 2013. The Agency restated its fiscal year 2012 beginning net position by $9,359,297.
Deferred financing costs of $7,355,141 and deferred expenses of $2,004,156 were retroactively
fully amortized due to the implementation of GASB 65.

In March 2012, the GASB issued GASB No. 66 — Technical Correction — 2012 GASB No. 66
clarifies implementation issues that were presented in GASB No. 62 — Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and
AICPA Pronouncements. The standard provides clarification that the purchase price of loans is to
include the amount paid to the seller plus any fees paid, less any fees, received. For the Agency,
the amendments in GASB No. 66 are effective beginning with the periods beginning after
December 15, 2012. Early adoption of the standard is permitted. This standard is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Agency’s financial statements.

In June 2012, the GASB issued GASB No. 67 — Financial Reporting for Pension Plans.

GASB No. 67 replaces requirements of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 50, related to pension
plans administered through trusts or similar arrangements. The standard uses existing
framework for financial reports of defined benefit pension plans, including a statement of
fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. The standard
enhances note disclosures and required supplementary information for both defined benefit and
defined contribution pension plans. In addition, the standard requires the presentation of
information about annual money-weighted rates of return in the notes and in 10-year required
supplementary information schedules. For the Agency, the amendments in GASB No. 67 are
effective beginning with the fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2013. Early adoption of the
standard is permitted. This standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the Agency’s
financial statements.

In June 2012, the GASB issued GASB No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions. GASB No. 68 replaces requirements of GASB Statements No. 27 and No. 50, related
to pension plans administered through trusts or similar arrangements. The standard requires
governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for
pension benefits as a liability, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual
costs of pension benefits. In addition, the standard adds revised and new note disclosures and
required supplementary information. For the Agency, the amendments in GASB No. 68 are
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 effective beginning with the fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2014. Early adoption of the
standard is permitted. This standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the Agency’s
financial statements.

In January 2013, the GASB issued GASB No. 69 ~ Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Obligations. The standard establishes accounting and financial reporting standards
related to government combinations and disposals of government operations. The term
government combinations include a variety of transactions referred to as mergets, acquisitions,
and transfers of operations. GASB No. 69 is effective for government combinations and
disposals of government operations occurring in financial reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2013, and should be applied on a prospective basis. Earlier application is
encouraged. This standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the Agency’s financial
statements. °

In April 2013, the GASB issued GASB No. 70 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. The standard requires a government that extends a
nonexchange financial guarantee to recognize a lability when qualitative factors and historical
data, if any, indicate that it is more likely than not that the government will be required to make a
payment on the guarantee. It requires a government that has issued an obligation guaranteed ina
nonexchange transaction to report the obligation until legally released as an obligor. It also
requires a government that is required to repay a guarantor for making a payment on a
guaranteed obligation or legally assuming the guaranteed obligation to continue to recognize a
liability until legally released as an obligor. The provisions of this standard are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2013. Earlier application is encouraged. The Agency
is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of this standard will have on its financial
statements.

3. Programs of the Agency

The following describes certain programs or divisions of the Agency. Please also refer to the
Supplemental Consolidating Information on pages 62-63.

General Operations Program

The General operations program supports five major programs of the Agency: direct lending,
investment banking, development/redevelopment of properties, consulting/technical assistance to
communities and support of the defense sector in the Commonwealth, The Agency’s lending
programs consist of business loans, real estate mortgages, equipment loans and development
loans. Lending programs generate fee income at closings and interest income. Investment
banking acts as a conduit issuer for tax-exempt bond financing for a variety of borrowers.
Investment banking generates fee income at bond issuances. The Agency invests funds in real
estate developments in support of its development/redevelopment of blighted and/or surplus
public properties within the Commonwealth. The Agency is actively involved in the
development and/or ongoing operations of seven properties in Devens, Springfield,
Northampton, Fall River, Boston, Taunton and Gloucester. The Agency provides technical
assistance to communities through various programs including loans and consulting services.
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The Agency also devotes staff time toward defense sector work. Current defense sector projects
include economic analysis of the importance of the Commonwealth military installations and
work on the Commonwealth’s Military Asset and Security Strategy Task Force. The net position
of the General operations program was approximately $206.5 million and $214.7 million as of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Devens Operations Program

The Devens operations program was established under Chapter 498 of the Acts of 1993, as
amended (with respect to the redevelopment of the former Fort Devens, a former federal military
base). With financial support from the Commonwealth, the Agency purchased the property and
has been redeveloping Devens, a 4,400 acre mixed-use community located in Devens, MA, by
creating a sustainable and diverse residential and business community. The Agency currently
provides municipal services, education, environmental protection, redevelopment and property
leasing services at Devens. The net position of the Devens operations program was
approximately $81.6 million and $81.9 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Brownfield Redevelopment Program

The Brownfield Redevelopment program was established in 1998 as part of the
Commonwealth’s Brownfield Act to encourage reuse of environmentally contaminated property
in economically distressed areas of the Commonwealth rather than open space for new economic
development. This legislation initially allocated a total of $30.0 million to the program for the
purpose of financing assessments and clean ups of eligible Brownfield sites. The Agency
received an additional $30.0 million allocation in 2007. This program is administered by the
Agency and must be invested according to an established Agency investment policy related to
restricted funds. All related interest income must be utilized for the administration of the
program. The Agency had approximately $3.1 million and $3.5 million of gross Brownfield
loans receivable with loan loss reserves of approximately $0.9 million and $1.5 million for net
Brownfield loans receivable of approximately $2.2 million and $2.0 million outstanding as of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Agency also issued approximately $5.4 million and
$4.3 million of grant awards during fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively. As of June 30,
2013 and 2012, approximately $23.5 million and $30.6 million, respectively, are available for
disbursement. The net position of this program is approximately $26.9 million and $34.2 million
as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Emerging Technology Program

The Emerging Technology Program (“ETP”) was established under Sections 27 and 28 of
Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 23G. ETP leverages private financing to develop
specialized facilities for businesses, which develop or commercialize emerging technologies.
During fiscal years prior to 2009, the Agency received $49.8 million from the Commonwealth
for ETP. In fiscal year 2011, the Agency disbursed $15.0 million to the Massachusetts Growth
Capital Corporation as directed in legislation by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The
Agency had approximately $17.4 million and $13.6 million of gross ETP loans receivable with
loan loss reserves of approximately $8.8 million and $7.2 million for net ETP loans receivable of
approximately $8.6 miilion and $6.4 million outstanding as of June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.
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As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency had approximately $18.4 million and $22.5 million,
respectively, available for disbursement. The net position of this program is approximately
$27.5 million and $28.8 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Agency assets
at risk due to outstanding ETP guarantees, including commitments, at June 30, 2013 and 2012,
were $241,667 and $541,667, respectively. The Agency has also committed an additional $5.0
million to an equity investment in the Commonwealth Fund IIl LLC from the ETP program. As
of June 30, 2013 a total of $474,190 had been contributed to the Commonwealth Fund [IT LLC.

Cultural Facilities Program

The Cultural Facilities Program was established under section 42 of the Massachusetts General
Laws chapter 23G, effective July 13, 2006. The purpose of the Cultural Facilities program is to
make grants or loans for the acquisition, design, construction, repair, renovation, rehabilitation or
other capital improvement or deferred maintenance of a cultural facility. All related interest
income must be utilized for the administration of the program. In fiscal years 2007 through
2009, the Agency received funding in the amount of $39.2 million from the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. The Agency was awarded another $17.0 million in fiscal years 2013 and 2012.
These new funds are given to the Agency on a reimbursement basis as grants are awarded. The
Agency awarded approximately $6.1 million and $5.9 million of grant awards during fiscal years
2013 and 2012, respectively. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, approximately $5.5 million and
$8.3 million are available for disbursement, respectively. The net position of this program is
approximately $4.5 million and $6.1 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Massachusetts Export Development Program

This program serves as a guarantee to lending institutions for their insurance of working capital
Ioans to Massachusetts exporters. These funds are administered by the Agency and must be
invested in securities issued by the Treasury of the United States Government or the
Commonwealth. All related investment income must be utilized for the administration of this
program. The Agency has designated approximately $3.9 million and $4.0 million at June 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively, for the Massachusetts Export Program. Total Agency assets at risk
due to Massachusetts Export Development Program guarantees outstanding, including
commitments, aggregated approximately $4.8 million and $2.9 million at June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The net position of this program is approximately $3.9 million and $4.0
million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Mortgage Insurance Program

The purpose of the Mortgage Insurance Program is to encourage private sector investment by
guaranteeing a portion of bank loans or bond issues. Premium income received and other monies
made available to the program are credited thereto. This premium income is amortized over the
loan guarantee period. The Agency has designated approximately $7.3 million and $7.2 million
at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, for the Mortgage Insurance Program and are considered
restricted funds. Total Agency assets at risk due to mortgage insurance in force, including
commitments, under the Guaranteed Loan Program, aggregated approximately $9.7 million and
$6.4 million at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The net position of this program is
approximately $7.0 million and $7.1 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Charitable Institutional Trust _

The Charitable Institutional Trust (“Trust™) was established on July 8, 1997 as an irrevocable
trust. The Trust’s net assets are subject to restriction regarding their use. The Trust is authorized
to make payments to charitable organizations or governmental entities such as public colleges
and universities which the Agency is from time to time authorized by statute to assist in the form
of gifts, grants, and loans. The general fund may be eligible to receive the income and up to 10%
of the principal from the Trust at the trustees’ direction. All payments to the general fund shall be
used by the Agency only to reduce charges it would otherwise have to impose upon institutions
using the Agency’s services, and all payments to charitable institutions or governmental entities
must be for their charitable and governmental purposes, respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Charitable Trust awarded grants of $246,56]
and $248,649, respectively, to charitable institutions. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012,
approximately $11.2 million and $11.7 million are available for future payments, respectively.
The grants are reported as capital grant awards in the accompanying statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position. The net position of this fund is approximately $11.5
million and $11.7 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Credit Enhancement of Charter School Facilities Program

In 2005, the Agency was awarded $10.0 million from the U.S. Department of Education to
enable the Agency to facilitate the financing of charter schools through the issuance of loan
guarantees. These funds are held as short-term investments by the Agency under the terms of the
grant and can be used to pay claims on its guarantees. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012,
approximately $11.6 million and $11.5 million are available for loan guarantees, respectively.
Total Agency assets at risk due to outstanding guarantees, including commitments, aggregated
approximately $12.0 million and $10.4 million at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The net
position of this fund is approximately $11.4 million and $11.5 million as of June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

Devens Electric Utility Division

In February 2001, the Agency issued Electrical System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 for the
purpose of financing the design, construction, installation and associated costs of the electrical
system at Devens, as part of its Devens operations. As required by Section 609 of the Master
Trust Indenture by and between the Agency and the Trustee, the Agency accounts for all related
revenues and expenditures associated with the electric utilities at Devens as a separate division
within the Agency (the “Devens Electric Utility Division™). Net position of the Devens Electric
Utility Division was approximately $19.2 million and $20.5 million as of June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. Please also refer to Footnote 16 Segment Reporting.

Devens Gas, Water and Wastewater Utility Divisions

Devens also provides natural gas, water and sewer services to the residents and businesses of
Devens, MA., as part of its Devens operations. The utility divisions pursue programs aimed at
increasing energy supply, reliability and efficiency while limiting costs. The Agency tracks each
utility division as a separate and distinct program. The net position of these Utility Divisions
was approximately $23.3 million and $22.4 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Bond Issuance Program

The Bond Issuance Program allows the Agency to offer composite bond issues to the public
using Agency insurance and a letter of credit from a rated financial institution. The program
provides fixed rate long-term financing for eligible projects.

4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
The following summarizes the cash and cash equivalents of the Agency and identifies certain
types of investment risk as defined by GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosures at June 30.

Carrying
June 30, 2013 Amount
Cash Deposits § 57,372,544
Massachusets Municipal Depository Trust (cash portfolio} 2,055,011

$ 59,427,555

Carrying
June 30, 2012 Amount
Cash Deposits $ 58,556,543
Massachusets Municipal Depository Trust (cash portfolio) 2,050,565

$ 60,607,108

The Agency invests some of its funds in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust
(“MMDT” or the “Trust™), an investment pool for political subdivisions of the Commonwealth
designed as a legal means to invest temporarily available cash. The state treasurer serves as
trustee of MMDT, and has sole authority pertaining to rules, regulations and operations of the
Trust. A participant’s holdings in the Trust are not subject to creditors of the Commonwealth,
nor will the Trust itself be affected by the financial difficulties of any participant. Amounts held
at MMDT are uninsured and uncollateralized. A copy of the financial statements of MMDT can
be obtained from the Office of the State Treasurer, 1 Ashburton Place, Boston, MA 02110.

The primary objectives of the Agency’s formal investment policy, approved by the Board of
Directors, is to ensure preservation-of capital, to grow funds available to meet the expanding
needs of lending capital in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, to ensure liquidity of
investments to meet current and estimated cash flow needs by investing in instruments with
structured maturities that are readily marketable and to provide maximum yield while
maintaining safety and liquidity.

General program operations allowed investments include: U.S. Treasuries, U.S. government
agency issues, bank certificates of deposit or time deposits, banker’s acceptance, short-term
corporate obligations, repurchase agreements, asset backed securities, and money market funds.
The maximum maturity of any investment is § years with the exception of floating rate notes,
with 10% of the portfolio always being available in one day.
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Restricted program operations allowed investments include: bonds, notes and similar debt
instruments issued by corporations, trusts, partnerships, and limited liability companies;
commercial paper; U.S. time deposits, certificates of deposit and banker’s acceptances; fixed,
variable and indexed rate notes; repurchase agreements; and securities issued by companies,
trusts and other entities registered under the 1940 Act or exempt from the 1940 Act under
Section 3(c). The maximum allowable dollar-weighted average maturity is 90 days. The
maximum maturity of any investment is 397 days, with 10% of the portfolio always being
available in one day.

Custodial Credit Risk- Deposits

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Agency’s
deposits may not be recovered. The Agency’s cash, cash equivalents and investments are held
by reputable financial institutions, whose credit has been reviewed by management.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The Agency manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing operating funds
primarily in short term investments.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Agency’s investments will be negatively impacted due to the
default of the Agency’s investments. According to the Agency’s investment policy, investments
must be prime quality and rated no less than A by either Moody’s, Standard and Poor’s, or Fitch.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is assumed to arise when the amount of cash and investments that the
Agency has with any one issuer exceeds five percent of the total value of the Agency’s
investments. As of June 30, 2013, the cash and investments held in any one issuer over five
percent of the total value of the Agency’s investments include a $29.2 million money market
fund (17.1%), a $15.5 million U.S. Treasury fund (9.1%) and a $13.3 miilion guaranteed
investment contract (7.8%).

As of June 30, 2012, the cash and investments held in any one issuer over five percent of the
total value of the Agency’s cash and investments include a $55.6 million money market fund
(29.9%), a $15.6 million U.S. Treasury fund (8.4%) and a $13.3 million guaranteed investment
contract (7.2%).

Foreign Currency Risk
The investment policy of the Agency limits the Agency’s foreign currency risk by excluding
foreign investments as an investment option.
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Depository Accounts
June 30, 2013 June 30,2012
Insured $ 25,366,249 § 22,318,321
Uninsured and uncollateralized 32,006,295 36,238,222

$ 57,372,544 § 58,556,543

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, investments of approximately $51.7 million and $63.8 million,
respectively, were designated for purposes such as specific loan programs and designations by
the Commonwealth and are included in short term investments in the statements of net position.

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, short term investments included approximately $89.3 million and
$105.9 million, respectively, of restricted investments. Long term restricted investments were
approximately $23.2 and $22.4 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

As of June 30, 2013, the Agency’s investments by maturity are summarized as follows:

Envestment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More

Investment Type Value Than } Ito5* Than 35
1.5, Treasury Bonds b 37488802 % - $ 374883802 §% -
Federal Agency Bends/Notes 19,282,824 - 19,282,824 -
Corporate Notes 2,290,732 1,820,090 470,642 -
Commercial Paper 11,191,898 11,391,898 . -
Certificates of Deposit 41,782,853 33,547,038 8235815 -
Asset Backed Securities 27,569 - 27,599 -
PFM Prime Institutional Class Money Market Fund 29,223,509 26,223 509 “ -
US Bank First American U.S. Treasury Fund 15,491,204 15,491,204 - -
Natixis Funding Corporation Guarantee Investment Contracts 13,265,815 - - 13,265,815
Other Guarantee Investment Contracts 223413 - - 223,413
Common Stock 35,817 - - 35117

$ 170,303,766  § 91273739 § 05505682 § 13,524,345

* Within the corporate notes category a steuctured investment vehicle has been adjusted to its fair market value
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As of June 30, 2012, the Agency’s investments by maturity are summarized as follows:

Investment Maturities (in yvears)

Fair less More

Investment Type Value Than 1 lto 5% Than 5
U.8. Treasury Bonds 5 20,656,886 5 652,107 § 20004779 § -
Federal Agency Bonds/Notes 29,473,796 625,115 28,848,681 -
Corporate Notes 9,542,593 8,978,703 563,892 -
Commercial Paper 16,712,359 16,712,359 - -
Certificates of Deposit 24,575,853 23,070,648 1,505,205 -
Asset Backed Securities 286,439 - 286,439 -
PFM Prime Institutional Class Money Market Fund 55,552,254 55,552,254 “ -
US Bank First American U.S. Treasury Fund 15,624,773 15,624,773 - -
Natixis Funding Corporation Guarantee Investment Contracts 13,265,815 - - 13,265,815
Other Guarantee lavestment Contracts 221,063 “ - 221,063

b 185911833 § 121215959 § 51208996 § 13,486,878

* Within the corporate notes category a structured investment vehicle has been adjusted to its fair market value

As of June 30, 2013, the Agency’s investments by quality rating are summarized as follows:

Quality Ratings
Fair

Investment Type Value AAA AA A Unrated *
1.8, Treasury Bonds $ 37488801 § - $ 37488801 §$ - % -
Federal Agency Bonds/Notes 19,282 824 - 19,282 824 - -
Corporate Notes 2290732 - 1,820,090 - 470,642
Commercial Paper 11,191,899 - - 11,151,839 -
Certificates of Deposit 41,782, 853 - 1,741,345 40,041,308 -
Asset Backed Securities 27,599 27,599 - - -
PFM Prime Institutional Class Money Market Fund 29,223,509 29223 505 - - -
US Bank First American 118, Treasury Fund 15,491,204 15,491,204 - - -
Natixis Funding Corporation Guarantee Investment Contracts 13,265,815 - 13,265,815 -
Other Guaraniee Invesiment Contracts 223413 - - 223413 -
Common Stock 35,117 - - - 35,117

$ 170303766 % 44742312 8 60333260 $ 64722435 $ 505759

* This rating category includes a structured investment vehicle in corporate notes,
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As of June 30, 2012, the Agency’s investments by quality rating are summarized as follows:

Quality Ratings

Fair

Tvestment Type Value AAA AA A Unrated *
U.8. Treasury Bonds ' 3 20,656,886 § - 5 20656886 3 - h -
Federal Agency Bonds/Notes 29,473,796 - 29473 796 - -
Corporate Notes 0,542 59 7805028 1,083,675 563,892
Comemercial Paper 16,712,359 - 16,712,359 -
Certificates of Deposit 24,575,853 430,775 24,130,078 15,000
Asset Backed Securities 286,438 251,590 - - 34,448
PFM Primme Institutional Class Money Mazket Fund 55,552,254 35,552,254 - - -
US Bank First American U.S. Treasury Fund 15,624,773 15,624,773 - - -
Natixis Funding Corporation Guarantee Investment Contracts 13,265,815 - - 13,265,815 -
Other Guarantee Investment Contracts 221,063 - - 221,063 -

§ 185,911,833 § 71426017 § 58456485 0§ 55412991 $ 613340

* This rating category includes a structured investment vehicle in corporate notes. This investment has been adjusted to reflect fair market value.

5. Investments in Joint Ventures

The Agency has a participating interest in nineteen joint ventures, which are accounted for on the
equity method. Upon dissolution of the respective joint venture, proceeds will be distributed
according to the terms of the joint venture agreements of each respective member.

The following is a summary of the Agency’s investment in joint ventures at June 30:

Capital

June 30,2012 Contributions
$13,386,244 § 1519835

Investrnent in Hospital Hi

Share of
Operating Loss June 30, 2013

(345,220) § 6,895,868

Impairment
Distributions Loss

$ (664,991} $ (7,000,000) $

Investmert in Commonwealth Fund I LLC - 474,190 (33,012) 441,178
Iavestments m NMTC entities 21,572 500 (2,420) - (52%) 19,127
513,407,816 § 1594525 § (667411} § (70000000 §  (378,757) § 7,356,173
Capital Impairment Share of
June 30, 2011 Contributions Distributions Foss Operating Loss June 30, 2012
Cape Ann Equity Investment $ 506449 % - $ - 5 (500,449) § - 3 -
Investment in Hospital Hill 16,994,108 756,068 {259,360)  (4,000,000) (104,572) 13,386,244
Investments m NMTC entities 18,733 2,923 (384) - 298 21,572

$17,519,290 3§

758,993

$ (259744 § (4,506,449 § (104,274) § 13,407,816

The Agency is a 73.099% participant and the managing member in Hospital Hill LLC (the
“LLC™). The LLC was formed to acquire and redevelop the former Northampton State Hospital
site in Northampton, Massachusetts. The redevelopment effort focuses on office/light industrial
space, mixed use space and retail space, approximately 300 housing units consisting of both
multi-family housing units and single-family houses and approximately 60-80 assisted living
units. No separate financial statements are issued for this LLC.
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The Agency is a 98% member in the Commonwealth Fund HI LLC (“Fund”). The managing
member is Massachusetts Technology Development Corporation. The primary purpose of the
Fund is fo invest in entities broadly related to the technologies industry such as robotics,
instrumentation, telecom, computers, software, healthcare I'T and mobile applications. The
Agency has committed a total of $5.0 million to the Commonwealth Fund TIT LLC investment
from ETP. As of June 30, 2013 $474,190 had been contributed to the Commonwealth Fund 111
LIC. Separate financial statements are issued for this Fund and copies may be obtained by
contacting Simon Gerlin, CFO, Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, 99 High Street,
11" Floor, Boston, MA. 02110,

The Agency has a 0.01 to 0.10% investment allocation in the Investments in New Markets Tax
Credit entities (“NMTC entities”). The Agency, via subsidiary entities MassDevelopment New
Markets LLC (*“MDNM”) and Mass HEFA New Markets CDE LLC (“HEFA CDE"), was
awarded the right to allocate federal New Markets Tax Credits against $216 million and $66
million, respectively, of its investors’ investments by the United States Department of the
Treasury. New Markets Tax Credits have been made available to banks, corporations,
partnerships and funds that invest in MDNM and HEFA CDE; the proceeds of their investments
will be reinvested in business and commercial development in low-income census tracts. As of
June 30, 2013, the Agency had closed on a total of sixteen such transactions. Separate financial
statements are issued for these entities and copies may be obtained by contacting Simon Gerlin,
CFO, Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, 99 High Street, 11t Floor, Boston, MA.
02110.

. Loans Receivable

The following is a summary of the Agency’s loans receivable as of June 30:

Disbursements  {Collections)/
June 30, 2012  (Provisicns, net) Write~offs June 30,2013

Loans receivable $ 109,220,281 $ 19,992,829 $(18,857,117) $ 110,355,993
Less: allowance for loan loss  (15,615,993) (720,255 1,684,156 (14,652,092)
$ 93604288 8§ 19272,574 §(17,172,961) $ 95,703,901

Disbursements  (Collections)/
June 30,2011 (Provisions, net}  Write-offs June 30, 2012

Loans receivable $ 94,678,149 $§ 32,780,018 $(18,237.886) $ 109,220,281
Less: allowance for Joan loss  (13,846,362) (2,837,544) 1,067,913 (15,615,993
$ 80,831,787 $ 29942474 §(17,169,973) $§ 93,604,288

Most loans are collateralized by a first or shared first position in the underlying collateral. As of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, 18 loans totaling $6.4 million and 14 loans totaling $7.4
million are collateralized by second positions in the underlying property. Also, as of June 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively, 10 loans totaling $2.4 million and 9 loans totaling $2.4 million are
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collateralized by third and fourth positions. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, 4 loans
totaling $3.2 million and 3 loans totaling $3.4 million are unsecured.

Loans receivable are stated at principal amount outstanding, net of a provision for loan loss.
Loans are charged against the provision for loan loss when the Agency believes the collectibility
of the principal is unlikely. The provision for loan loss is an amount that the Agency believes
will be adequate to absorb possible loan losses of existing loans that are expected to become
uncollectible.

There were approximately $13.7 million and $10.4 million net loans receivable that were
considered nonaccrual loans as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. All payments received
from borrowers for nonaccrual loans are applied to the principal balance of the loan.

. Interest Receivable

The following is a summary of the Agency’s interest receivable at June 30,

2013 2012
Investment interest $ 604,679 $ 638,846
Loan interest 2,752,306 2,260,302

$ 3,356,985 $ 2,899,148

Interest receivable includes amounts earned but not received on both investments and loans, net
of an allowance for doubtful accounts. When the Agency believes the collectability of the
interest is unlikely, a reserve against interest is charged as a component of the allowance for
doubtfal accounts. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, no allowance was deemed necessary.

. Predevelopment and Brownfield Receivables

The following is a summary of the Agency’s Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables as of
June 30:
Disbursements  (Collectionsy
June 30,2012 (Provision, net) Write-offs Juge 30, 2013

Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables § 4,494,293 § 1,659,493 § (1,457,132) § 4,696,654
Less: accumulated provision (2,898,713) (1,337,426) 642,899 (3,593,240)

$ 1,595580 3% 322,067 $ (814,233) § 1,103,414

Disbursements  (Collections)/
June 30, 2011 (Provision, nef) Write-offs June 30, 2012

Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables $ 4,694,698 3§ 655,380 % (855,785) $§ 4,494,293
Less: accumulated provision (3,186,367) (126,623) 414277 (2,898,713)

$ 1,508,331 §$ 528,757 3§ (441,508) $ 1,595,580
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Predevelopment and Brownfield receivables represent amounts advanced to organizations for the _
purpose of conducting market analysis and feasibility studies for expansion of operations,

Advanced funds are recovered in accordance with individual terms as stated in the memoranda of
agreement and evaluation of collectibility.

The accumulated provision acts as an allowance and is an amount that the Agency estimates will
be adequate to absorb possible losses of existing receivable, that are expected to become
uncollectible.

In addition to the advances noted above, the Agency awarded approximately $5.4 million and
$4.3 million of Predevelopment and Brownfield grant awards during fiscal years 2013 and 2012,
respectively, which are included in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position.
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9, Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets for the years ending June 30, respectively, is as follows:

Capital:
Land
Building
Butldings/land/tenant improvements
Infrastructure
Equipment
Office equipment
Constriction in progress
Assets held for sale
Subtotal
Less: accumulated depreciation
Building
Buildings/land/tenant improvements
Infrastructure
Equipment
Office equipment

Total

Capitak
Land
Building
Buildings/land/tenant improvements
Infrastructure
Equipment
Office equipment
Construction in progress
Assets held for sale
Subtotal
Less; accumufated depreciation
Building
Buildings/land/tenant improvements
Infrastructure

Equipment
Office equipment

Usefui

Life

Range

N/A

20-40

1-20

5-20

3-10
3-5

Useful

Life

Range

N/A

20-40

1-20
5-20

3-10
3-5

Additions/ Disposals/
in Years June 30,2012  (Transfers) Transfers June 30, 2013
8,176,162 § 2y $ 24,537y § 8,151,623
166,856,468 559,090 (100,522) 167,315,036
38,429,361 55,328 (3,000) 38,481,689
131,100,526 2,502,804 (171,431 133,431,899
4,460,540 360,683 - 4,821,223
3,130,205 405,054 (19,124) 3,516,135
665,111 (313,683) - 351,428
848,437 6,220,004 (113,663) 6,954,778
353,666,810 9,789,278 (432,277) 363,023 811
(43,346,244)  (4,121,143) 40,556 (47.426,831)
{18,389,584)  (1,966,646) 9,037y (20.365,267)
(43,321,504)  (5,581,355) 15,071 {48,887,788)
(3,726,182) {229,098) - (3,955,280)
(2.877,109) (165,320) 19,124 (3,023,305)
(111,660,623} (12,063,562) 65,714 (123,658,471)
$ 242,006,187  $(2,274,284) § (366,563) $239,365,340
Additions/ Disposals/
in Years June 36,2011  (Transfers) Transfers June 30,2012
8,252,784 % 2 8 (76,624) § 8,176,162
166,584,364 379,226 (107,122) 166,856,468
38,396,634 32,727 - 38,429,361
128,628,828 3,213,404 (741,706) 131,100,526
4,263,324 197,216 - 4,460,540
2,946,362 183,843 - 3,130,205
1,908,335 (1,243,224) - 665,111
848,437 - - 848,437
351,829,068 2,763,194 (925.452) 353,606,810
(39,390,852)  (3,961,002) 5,610 (43,346,244)
(16,312317y  (2,077,267) - {18,389,584)
(37,907,299}  (5,598,078) 183,873 (43,321,504)
(3,507,534) {218,648) - (3.726,182)
(2,674.507) {202,602) - (2,877,109)
{99,792,500) (12,057,597) 189,483  (111,660,623)
$ 252,036,559  $(9,294,403) § (735,969) $242,006,187
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100 Cambridge Street Project

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency has cumulative net costs associated with the 100
Cambridge Street Project of approximately $113.2 million and $117.4 million, respectively,
which is included in capital assets. The related depreciation expense for the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012 was approximately $4.0 million and $4.1 million, respectively.

Fall River

In 2001, construction was completed on the Kerr Mill site in Fall River, Massachusetts. The
Agency was responsible for the construction of the Advanced Technology and Manufacturing
Center for the University of Massachusetts (known as “ATMC"). The ATMC is built on the site
of the Kerr Mill, which was destroyed by fire on January 12, 1987. The Agency’s cumulative
net costs of approximately $9.6 million and $9.9 million, respectively, related to this project as
of June 30, 2013 and 2012, are included in capital assets. The related depreciation expense for
the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 was approximately $353,000 and $377,000,
respectively.

Deveéas

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency has cumulative net costs associated with the
development of Devens, including utilities, of approximately $102.9 million and $92.0 million,
respectively, which are included in capital assets. The related depreciation expense for the years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $6.8 million, respectively.

The Agency had three lot sales at Devens, MA in fiscal year 2013 resulting in gross sales
proceeds of approximately $134,000 and a net gain of approximately $13,000. There was an
additional lot sale at Devens, MA during the fiscal year and a gain of approximately $288,000
was deferred due to a repurchase clause in the purchase and sale agreement. The gain on the sale
will be recognized once the conditions in the repurchase clause are satisfied.

The Agency had seven lot sales at Devens, MA during fiscal year 2012 that resulted in gross
sales proceeds of $3.2 million and net gains on sale of $2.7 million. There was an additional lot
sale at Devens, MA during the fiscal year and a gain of approximately $469,000 was deferred
due to a repurchase clause in the purchase and sale agreement. The gain on the sale will be
recognized once the conditions in the repurchase clause are satisfied.

Springfield

The Agency purchased a building at 1550 Main Street in Springfield, Massachusetts in
September 2009 for a purchase price of $2.5 million. The Agency has cumulative net costs
associated with 1550 Main Street of approximately $6.5 million and $7.1 million as of June 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively, which is included in capital assets. The major redevelopment
projects included replacement of elevators, renovation of restrooms, replacement of a public
plaza and significant renovations to the building’s storefront and public atrium. The Agency
recognized approximately $3.0 million of capital grant revenue associated with the
redevelopment projects to date. The related depreciation expense for the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012 was approximately $711,000 and $649,000, respectively.

41



Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
(Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

10.

Taunton

In January 2012, the Agency, in partnership with Taunton Development Corporation (*TDC”),
purchased from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the former Dever State School core
campus in Taunton, MA. The property consists of approximately 220 acres with approximately
40 dilapidated buildings and underground tunnels. A new non-profit corporation called Taunton
Development MassDevelopment Corporation (“Taunton Corp.”) was formed to own and
redevelop the property. Redevelopment work on the property of approximately $6.1 million and
$710,000 was done during fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively. Approximately $4.3 million
and $373,000 in grant income was recognized during fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively in
relation to the redevelopment.

The Agency had a lot sale at the Taunton property with gross sales proceeds of $405,000 and a
net gain of approximately $264,000 during the fiscal year.

Leases

The Agency leases office, commercial, and retail space at 100 Cambridge Street, Kerr Mill,
Springfield, Boston, Devens and Taunton. At June 30, 2013, the Agency had minimum future
rental income, under long-term non-cancelable operating leases with various expiration dates
through fiscal year 2062, for facilities over the next five years as follows:

Operating Leases
Fiscal Year Rental Income
2014 $ 19,265,036
2015 18,184,999
2016 16,456,909
2017 13,810,838
2018 12,148,463
Total § 79,866,245

Outstanding Loans, Commitments and Revenue Bonds Issued
The Agency issued loans under its economic development programs aggregating $20.0 million

and $32.8 million during fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively, and has committed to issuing
an additional $6.9 million and $11.5 million of loans as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Leases

At June 30, 2013, the Agency had minimum future rental commitments under long-term non-

cancelable operating leases for facilities as follows:

Fiscal Year Rent Expense
2014 $ 3,265,670
2015 4,105,213
2016 4,058,443
2017 3,835,661
2018 3,748,806
2019-2023 18,877,333
2024-2028 14,838,906
2029-2033 12,250,000
2034-2038 12,250,000
2039-2043 12,250,000
2044-2048 12,250,000
2049-2052 9,800,000

Total $ 111,530,032

Rent expense included in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position was approximately $4.2 million for fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively.

In 2004, the Agency (M/SBRC) entered into a 50 year ground lease with the Commonwealth for
100 Cambridge Street. The lease contains an option to extend for two 15 year periods. Annual
base rent for the ground lease is approximately $2.5 million each year and is included in
property, maintenance and utilities expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes
in net position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012. The Commonwealth leases approximately 286,000
square feet at 100 Cambridge Street. The lease expires January 31, 2054, Rental income for
M/SBRC was approximately $9.2 million and $9.3 million for fiscal years 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and is included in M/SBRC and other income in the statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position. The payment of ground rent and ground rent interest is
subordinate to payments of operating expenses and debt service and funding of project reserves.

The Agency also leases office space in Boston and Devens, Massachusetts and various other
cities for regional offices throughout Massachusetts. Rent expense for the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012 for the Boston office space was approximately $1.2 million and $1.1 million,
respectively. Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 for the Devens office
space was approximately $414,000 and $409,000, respectively.
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The Agency’s Bond Issuance Program assisted in the issuance of taxable and tax-exempt bonds
and lease transactions on behalf of client institutions through its bond financing program on 99
projects aggregating $2.3 billion during fiscal year 2013 and 98 projects aggregating $3.2 billion
during fiscal year 2012. The Agency also completed 3 and 1 pool loan transactions for
approximately $28.0 million and $9.7 million during fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively.
(the closings during fiscal year 2013 were recycling of funds, not additional funding). These
debt obligations are conduit transactions and do not constitute a debt or liability of the Agency,
therefore, these financing transactions are not included in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. The Agency has earned bond issuance fee revenues related to these
financings of approximately $6.8 million and $5.3 million, in fiscal years 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and are included as a component of bond issuance and new markets tax credit fees
in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

On January 1, 2007, the Devens Electric Utility Division entered into a five year power supply
agreement in which the Devens Electric Utility Division will purchase and Morgan Stanley will
sell a certain mega watt hour amount of energy in each on-peak hour and off-peak hour every
month, On April 16, 2009, a second contract was entered into with Morgan Stanley for
additional power supply. The Morgan Stanley power supply agreements expired on April 30,
2012. A new power supply agreement began with Exelon on May 1, 2012 and runs through
December 31, 2014, The Exelon power supply agreement provides for the Electric System to
purchase electric energy in monthly on-peak and off-peak blocks at agreed upon prices. The
Electric System purchases approximately 60% of electric energy requirements from
Constellation Fnergy and the balance is purchased on a real time basis directly from NEPOOL at
the market price.

The Agency has concluded that the contracts noted above are not subject to GASB 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. The hedging contracts notes
above entered into by the Devens Electric Utility Division are considered normal purchases and
sales contracts for utilities as part of the ongoing operations of the Devens Electric Utility
Division. These activities would be subject to the exclusion provided for in GASB 53 and not
required as derivative instruments.

The Devens Electric Utility System has also entered into an Operation and Maintenance
Agreement with the town of Wellesley for the management and operation of the Electric System.
The current agreement expires March 31, 2019.
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11. Bonds Payable

The following is a summary of the Agency’s bonds payable activity for the years ended June 30:

Electric System Utility Bond

M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue Bonds

Pls
Premium
Less
Electric System Utility Bonds Discount

M/SBRC Redevelopment Bonds Discount

Electric System Utlity Bond

M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue Bonds

Plus
Premium
Less
Electric System Utility Bonds Discount

M/SBRC Redevelopment Bonds Discount

Weighted
Average
Interest Rate Principal
at June 30, June 30, Payments/ June 30, Current
2013 2012 Additions Amortization 2013 Portion
338% § 8145000 3§ - $ (340,000) $ 7,805,000 $ 345,000
3.45% 165,810,000 - (2,900,000 162,910,000 2,350,000
173,955,000 - {3,240,000) 170,715,000 2,695,000
14,475 - (1,191} 13,284 -
(20,206) - 3,128 {17,078) -
(1,541,270 - 105,931 {1,435,339) -
$172,407,999 § - % (3,132,132) § 169275867 §$ 2,695,000
Weighted
Average
Interest Rate Principal
at June 30, June 30, Payments/ June 30, Current
2012 2011 Additions Amortization 2012 Portion
454% § 8,775,000 $8,145000 $(8,775000) $§ 8145000 § 340,000
5.43% 166,810,600 - (1,000,060} 165,810,060 2,500,000
175,585,600 8,145,000 (9,775,000) 173,955,000 3,240,000
15,664 - {1,189) 14,475 -
{62,546) (22,204} 64,544 (20,206) -
{1,647,201) - 105,931 (1,541,270 -

$173,890917 $ 8122796 $ (9.605,714) § 172407999 § 3,240,000

Electric System Utility Bond
During fiscal 2001, the Agency issued Electric System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 for the

Devens project which totaled approximately $10.6 miltion. The Series 2001 Bonds were used to
finance the design, construction, installation and associated costs of certain capital improvements
to the Electric System at Devens.

In an effort to lower the weighted average interest rate on the bonds, the Agency refunded the
bonds in December 2011 and issued Devens Electric System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2011 (“Series 2011 Bonds™). Principal of $8,775,000 was repaid in relation to the Series 2011
Bonds and new principal of $8,145,000 was refunded.
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The Series 2011 Bonds are collateralized by a pledge of the Electric System's revenues and
certain funds and accounts established under the bond. The Series 2011 Bonds carry a long-term
Standard & Poor’s rating of A. The credit rating was upgraded from A- to A as part of the
refunding of the bonds during fiscal year 2012, Total principal and interest remaining on the
bonds is approximately $10,765,883, payable through June 30, 2031. For the current fiscal year,
principal and interest paid was $609,356 and total funds and accounts and revenues of the
Devens Electric Utility System were $1,220,334 and $13,128,355, respectively.

The bond documents require the maintenance of certain funds of the Project. Below are certain
funds balances as of June 30, 2013 and 2012: :

e The Revenue Fund had balances of $1.0 million and $0.9 million, respectively. All
revenues generated by the Electric System, exclusive of interest income, are
deposited into the Revenue Fund. Funds are transferred from the Revenue Fund to
other funds of the Electric System according to the bond resolution agreement.

¢ The Capital Upgrade Reserve Fund had balances of $4.0 million and $3.6 million,
respectively. The Capital Upgrade Reserve Fund may be used to fund capital
improvements to the Electric System. In fiscal year 2013 $696,373 of excess funds
from the Revenue Fund were transferred into the Capital Upgrade Reserve Fund. In
fiscal year 2013 and 2012, $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively, was used for
electrical infrastructure improvements at Devens.

e The Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund had balances of $2.4 million and $3.3 million,
respectively. The Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund may be used to fund operating
expenses of the Electric System when there are not sufficient funds available from
operations.

The Agency may transfer funds from the Capital Upgrade Reserve Fund to the Revenue Fund.
Excess balances in the Revenue Fund may be transferred to the Agency, free and clear of the lien
of the bond resolution, if all funding requirements are met and the debt service coverage
requirement of 1.5 has been met, cumulatively, during the twelve consecutive months prior to the
transfer date. During fiscal year 2013, $917.238 was transferred to the wastewater utility
division of the Agency to fund future wastewater capital improvements and to reduce debt.
During fiscal year 2012, $5.4 million was transferred from the Revenue Fund to the Devens
water utility division of the Agency for future water system capital improvements.

Principal payments are due annually through 2030. Interest expense related to this bond was
$269,356 and $397,969 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Devens Electric System Utility Bond agreement requires the maintenance of a minimum
debt service coverage ratio. Failure to comply with the minimum debt service covenant does not
constitute a default, as long as the Agency complies with specific requirements included in the
agreement. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the necessary debt service coverage was met.
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M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue Bonds _

On May 2, 2002, the Agency issued revenue bonds, Series 2002A, 2002B and 2002C in the
aggregate principal amount of $195.8 million for the 100 Cambridge Street Project (“the
Project”). The bonds bear interest at varying rates with maturities of various amounts through
2034.

The Bonds were issued in the following series:

$91,660,000 Revenue Bonds Series 2002A-Fixed Rate
$83,100,000 Revenue Bonds Series 2002B-Variable Rate
$21,050,000 Revenue Bonds Series 2002C-Variable Rate

The M/SBRC Redevelopment Revenue Bond agreement provides for, among other requirements,
the maintenance of a minimum senior debt service coverage ratio and certain other covenants.
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the necessary debt service coverage ratio was met.

The bonds are payable solely from certain revenues of the Project, including deposits to be made
with the Trustee by M/SBRC in accordance with the provisions of the Mortgage and Trust
Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of April 1, 2002, among the Agency, M/SBRC and the
Trustee.

On July 24, 2008, the Series 2002C bond was redeemed in the amount of $20.5 million.

The bond documents require the maintenance of certain funds of the Project. Below are certain
funds balances included in cash and cash equivalents-restricted for use as of June 30, 2013 and
2012:

e The Replacement Reserve Fund had balances of $1.0 million and $0.9 million,
respectively. This account is funded each month based on rented square feet at
M/SBRC. These funds will be used to fund tenant improvements when tenants vacate
space.

¢ The Project Reserve Fund had a balance of $9.0 million and $7.4 miltion,
respectively. This account is funded each month through the flow of funds when
there is sufficient revenue, as determined by the Agreement, and is to be used to pay
operating expenses if Project revenues are not sufficient,

e The Debt Service Reserve Fund had a balance of $13.3 million. This account,
originally funded with bond proceeds, is a reserve account that will be used to pay
debt service if cash flows of the Project are insufficient to pay required debt service
payments.

s The Commonwealth Tenant Improvement Fund had a balance of $2.1 million,
respectively. These funds are used to fund tenant improvements related to the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts leased space.
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Interest expense related to this bond was approximately $10.5 million and $10.6 million for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, of which approximately $2.3 million is unpaid as of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Agency has recorded an interest payable for this
amount.

Scheduled principal (excluding discounts and premiums) and estimated interest payments on all
the Bonds payable are shown below.

Total
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2014 $ 2,695000 § 8965904 § 11,660,904
2015 4,350,000 8,759,809 13,109.869
2016 5,055,000 8,495,599 13,550,599
2017 4,960,000 8,219,160 13,179,160
2018 5,670,000 7,918,111 13,588,111
2019-2023 33,555,000 34,344,693 67,899,693
2024-2028 45,040,000 22,781,761 67,821,761
2029-2033 56,630,000 8,800,157 65,430,157
2034 12,760,000 27,248 12,787,248
$ 170,715,000  $108,312,502  $ 279,027,502

The Series 2002A and Series 2002B Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the
option of the borrower.

12. Interest Rate Swap

In May 2002, the Agency entered into two interest rate swap agreements (“Swap”) with Lehman
Brothers Special Financing, Inc. (“Counterparty™), a subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Holding, Inc.
(“Lehman’™), in connection with the Series 2002B variable rate revenue bonds (the “2002B
Bonds™) of $13,450,000 and $69,650,000. The intention of the Swap was to effectively {ix the
Agency’s variable interest rate on the 2002B Bonds.

Under the Swap as originally consummated, the Agency paid a Counterparty an annual fixed
interest rate and received from the Counterparty variable rate payments based upon an auction
rate, At inception, the Swap had a notional amount of $83.1 million and the associated 2002B
Bonds had an $83.1 million principal amount. The Swap was entered into at the same time the
Bonds were issued (May 2002) and the 2002B Bonds’ variable rate was based on the auction rate.

The 20028 Bonds mature on February 1, 2026. The related interest rate Swap of $13,450,600
terminated on August 1, 2007 and $69,650,000 will terminate on February 1, 2026.

On March 30, 2006, the Agency modified (with the consent of bondholders) the terms of the
20028 Bonds and the Swap in order to achieve a lower effective fixed rate, eliminate certain
uncertainties, including auction risk, and obtain more favorable provisions under the Swap. Asa
result of these changes, the Agency pays the bondholders variable interest payments of 3 Month
LIBOR (“LIBCR”) plus 30 basis points and receives variable Swap payments of LIBOR plus 30
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basis points from the Counterparty and pays the Counterparty a fixed rate of 6.747% with respect
to the $69,650,000 portion of the Swap.

On September 15, 2008 Lehman filed for bankruptcy. The Counterparty also filed for bankruptey
on October 3, 2008. The Agency has continued to pay the underlying bondholders the variable
interest payments. The Agency is unhedged against interest rates in excess of LIBOR greater than
6.447% due to the Counterparty’s bankruptcy.

The fair value of the Swap had an unrealized negative fair value of approximately $15.9 million
and $21.6 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. In accordance with GASB 53,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, the $15.9 million and $§21.6
million deferral of possible future payments relating to the unrealized negative fair value is shown
as a deferred outflow interest rate swap asset in the Corporation’s statement of net position as of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The offsetting $15.9 million and $21.6 million unrealized
negative fair value of the Swap is shown as an interest rate swap liability in the Corporation’s
statement of net position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The fair value of the Swap at June 30, 2013 and 2012 was developed by a third party consultant
and is based upon confirmation transactional information, including the notional amortization
schedules contained therein, comparing the rate on the Swap with market rates on the valuation
date and taking the present value of the differential between the Swap and market rates back to the
valuation date using accepted market discount rates for the each respective amortization date
involved.

Credit Risk

The Swap relies upon the performance of the Counterparty, and as a result the Corporation is
exposed to credit risk, or the risk that the Counterparty fails to perform according to its contractual
obligations. On October 3, 2008, the Counterparty filed for bankruptcy. The Corporation has
continued to pay its obligations in accordance with the Agreement. The Corporation is continuing
to research an appropriate plan of action. The final outcome and impact of this matter is currently
unknown.

Interest Rate Risk

The Corporation pays the bondholders variable interest payments of LIBOR plus 30 basis points
and receives variable Swap payments of LIBOR plus 30 basis points from the Counterparty and
pays the Counterparty a fixed rate of 6.747% with respect to the $69,650,000 portion of the Swap.
The Corporation is unhedged against interest rates in excess of LIBOR greater than 6.447% due to
the Counterparty’s bankruptcy.

Basis Risk

The Corporation pays the bondholders variable interest payments of LIBCR plus 30 basis points
and receives variable Swap payments of LIBOR plus 30 basis points from the Counterparty and
pays the Counterparty a fixed rate of 6.747% with respect to the $69,650,000 portion of the Swap.
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012 the rates of LIBOR plus 30 basis points was 0.5741% and
0.76585%, respectively.
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Termination Risk

The Corporation or the Counterparty may terminate the Swap if the other party fails to perform
under the terms of the contract. If, at the time of termination, the Swap has a negative fair value,
the Corporation would be liable to the Counterparty for the replacement value of the Swap. Due to
the Counterparty’s bankruptcy, the Corporation is continuing to research an appropriate plan of
action. The final outcome and impact of this matter is currently unknown.

Advances from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts

The following is a summary of the Agency’s Advances from the Commonwealth as of June 30,

Current
2012 Repayments 2013 Portion

Massachusetts Dept. of Environmental Protection § 11,360,614  § (437,658) § 10,922,956 § 454,756
Deveng-municipal services 3,750,000 (3,750,000) - -
$ 15,110,614 $(4,187658) § 10922956 § 454,756

During the year ended June 30, 1998, the Massachusetts Department of Environmental
Protection (“DEP”) approved loans to the Agency. In addition, The Massachusetts Water
Abatement Trust (“MWAT™) issued loans to the Agency. Collectively, these loans were
advanced to construct a wastewater treatment facility at Devens. These loans are being paid
back to the trust through revenues generated from wastewater usage at Devens and surrounding
communities. These loans are part of a pooled loan program bond within the

MWAT. The Agency and the Commonwealth have entered into a contract providing that the
Commonwealth shall pay contract assistance on behalf of the Agency with respect to partial
debt service on these loans. Repayment of the loans began on February 1, 2002. The loans
mature in August 2024 and February 2031. Interest expense related to these loans was $565,272
and $597,717 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The MWAT loan agreement requires the maintenance of an adequate annual debt service
coverage ratio. As of June 30, 2013, the necessary debt service coverage was met. As of June
30, 2012, the necessary debt service coverage was not met, however failure to comply with the
annual debt service coverage ratio does not constitute a default, as long as the Agency complies
with specific requirements included in the agreement. In September 2012, the Agency funded
the shortfall necessary to bring the ratio into compliance.
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14.

The scheduled principal and interest payments on the DEP loans at June 30, 2013, are as follows:

Total
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2014 $ 454,756  $ 538,719 % 993.475
2015 471,891 524,439 996,330
2016 488,053 496,532 984,585
2017 504,651 468,020 972,671
2018 526,250 435,051 - 961,301
2019-2023 2,896,826 1,646,269 4,543,095
2024-2028 3,355,523 761,583 4,117,106
2029-2031 2,225,006 185,764 2,410,770

$ 10,922,956 $ 5,056,377 $ 15,979,333

In June of 1997 the Agency received a one-time grant of approximately $3.8 million for
administration and provision of municipal services at Devens. Management has had
conversations with the Commonwealth regarding this liability and the Commonwealth has
verbally confirmed that the funds are not due to the Commonwealth, therefore, the $3.8 million
was re-classified as contributions from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in the statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position as of June 30, 2013.

Other Related Party Transactions

The following related party transactions are not reflective of consideration of what these
arrangements might have been if they occurred in an arms-length transaction.

The Agency oversees the management and development of the State Fish Pier (the “Pier™)
facilities, which are leased to the Agency by the Department of Environmental Management,
Office of Waterways (representing The Commonwealth of Massachusetts), on behalf of the
Bureau of Coastal Engineering. The Pier reimburses the Agency for salaries and other direct
costs paid by the Agency, which amounted to $172,647 and $181,441 for the years ended June
30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Agency incurred $43,642 and $54,184 for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, of staff time for which the Agency billed the Pier.

The Agency also oversees management services for Cape Ann Fisheries Development
Corporation (“Cape Ann”), a non-profit corporation formed for construction and management of
a multi-tenant seafood processing facility at the State Fish Pier in Gloucester. In fiscal year
2001, the Agency provided two loans to Cape Ann in the amounts of $2.3 million and $500,000
for construction expenses and remediation of environmental conditions at the seafood processing
facility. In fiscal year 2013 these loans were refinanced into four separate notes (Notes A and B
for each loan). The balance on the Notes A loans receivable, net of allowance for loan loss, as of
June 30, 2013 was $672,034 and $186,590, respectively. The Agency wrote off Notes B during
fiscal year 2013 as they were deemed uncollectible. The balance of these loans receivable as of
June 30, 2012 was $0 as the Agency had fully reserved the notes.
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In September 2009, the Agency refinanced another Cape Ann loan in the amount of $2.7 million.
The Agency wrote off this loan during fiscal year 2013 as it was deemed uncollectible. The
balance on this loan receivable, net of allowance for loan loss, was $1,024,025 as of June 30,
2012,

The Agency donated approximately $37,709 and $33,359 of Agency staff time and $30,467 and
$8,639 of Pier staff time and direct costs to Cape Ann during fiscal years 2013 and 2012,
respectively. These donated costs covered management services provided to Cape Ann during
the fiscal year.

The Agency is eligible to receive an administrative fee of up to 0.09% of the average daily assets
of the Short-Term Asset Reserve Fund (“Star Fund™). The STAR Fund is an investment fund
that is managed like a money market fund and invests in short-term, high-quality securities, and
is available for the investment of bond proceeds of the Agency’s client institutions. The STAR
Fund is designed to preserve principal, provide daily liquidity, and earn a high level of income.
The Agency’s Star Fund holdings held on its own account as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, were
approximately $2.4 million and $6.4 million, respectively, and are included in cash and cash
equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012,
the Agency received administrative fees of $180,530 and $247,871, respectively, from the STAR
Fund. The administrative fees are reported in bond issuance and New Markets Tax Credit fees in
the Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets.

Benefit Plans

The Agency contributed approximately $1.3 million and $1.2 million to employee benefit plans
described below during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Agency offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all employees of the Agency, permits
employees to defer a portion of their salaries. The Agency matches employees’

deferrals up to 5% of the participants’ salary, which are contributed to the 401(a) defined
contribution plan. The participants’ rights to the Agency contributions vest immediately.

The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. All contributions made under the plan, all property and rights
purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights
are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.
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Effective December 31, 1997, Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code was amended by
Section 1448 of the Small Business Job protection Act of 1996 which provides that
governmental deferred compensation plans must hold all assets and income of the plan in trust
for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. In accordance with the
legislation described above, the vested assets and associated liability of the deferred
compensation plan assets are not included in the statements of net position.

401(a) Defined Contribution Plan

The Agency provides for retirement through a contribution to a 401(a) plan for eligible
employees. Certain employees of the Agency are eligible to participate in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Pension Plan (the “State Plan™). Employees participating in the State Plan are not
eligible for this contribution, The contribution is equal to a percentage of the employee’s

gross compensation earned each pay period. Currently, the Agency’s contribution is 7.5% of the
employee’s gross compensation. Employees who began employment with the Agency on or
after January 1, 1999 are subject to a three-year vesting schedule.

The Agency may make loans up to 50% of a participant’s vested accrued balance in the 401(a)
account. Otherwise, the vested balance is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, permanent disability, or death.

The unvested portion of the 401(a) plan is recorded as an asset on the statements of net position.
The total unvested portion of the 401(a) plan as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 was approximately
$200,000 and $248,000, respectively.

In 1998, Massachusetts Government Land Bank (“Land Bank”) and Massachusetts Industrial
Finance Agency (“MIFA™) merged to create the Agency. Prior to this merger, all Land Bank
employees were participants in the State Plan; MIFA employees were not. All former Land
Bank employees were given the option to stay in the State Plan or take part in the retirement
plans being offered by the Agency. Any new employees hired after the merger were not eligible
to participate in the State Plan, except for the union firefighters at Devens. The State Plan
provides benefits including retiree health benefits to qualifying retirees. The programs are
carried out by the Commonwealth. There are currently 26 employees in the State Plan. Neither
the Land Bank nor the Agency have ever been charged for post-retirement benefits for its current
employees or its retirees from the Commonwealth Group Insurance Commission. The Agency’s
management has reviewed the requirements of GASB 45 Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions (“OPEB"), and believes the Agency
is not liable for OPEB costs for current active or retired employees due to the following: there is
no statutory requirement holding the Agency liable for OPEB costs; the Agency has never been
billed by the Group Insurance Commission for any OPEB costs; and it is the legal opinion of the
Agency’s outside attorney that no evidence exists that indicates that the Agency is liable for
these costs. '
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16. Segment Reporting

Devens Electric Utility Division
A separate financial statement for Devens Electric Utility Division is published and is available
upon request.

The Devens Electric Utility Division restated its fiscal year 2012 beginning net position by a
reduction of $189,491 due to the implementation of GASB 65, ltems Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities, during fiscal year 2013. Deferred financing costs were retroactively fully
amortized due to the implementation.

Summary financial information for the Devens Electric Utility Division is presented below:

Statements of Net Position as of June 30:

2013 2012
(As restated)
Assets
Current assets $ 2,946,465 § 2,966,485
Due from Massachusetts Development Finance Agency 60,655 -
Noncurrent assets 6,578,382 7,097,43 8
Capital assets, net 18,151,544 19,398,982
Total assets 27,737,046 29,462,905
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities 1,325,297 1,312,559
Due to Massachusetts Development Finance Agency - 80,681
Noncurrent liabilities 7,442,922 7,784,794
Total hiabilities 8,768,219 9,178,034
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 10,567,574 11,712,816
Restricted 8,401,253 8,572,055
Total net position 18,968,827 20,284,871

Total habilities and net position
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Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the years

ended June 30:
2013 2012
(As restated)
Operating revenues $ 12,964,988 $ 14,646,671
Operating expenses 11,879,099 13,105,547
Depreciation 1,375,428 1,323,686
Operating income (289,539) 217,438
Nonoperating expenses, net (151,903) (731,821
Grant income 42,636 -
Interfind transfer to Devens Wastewater Utility Division Fund (917,238) -
Interfund transfer to Devens Water Utility Division Fund - (5.400,000)
Decrease in net position (1,316,044) (5,914,383)
Net posttion at beginning of year : 20,284,871 26,199,254
Net position at end of year $ 18,968,827 $ 20284871

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30:

2013 2012
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,148,999 § 1,577.204
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,632,768) (6,959,108)
Net cash provided by/{(used in) investing activities 10,659 (15,382)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (473,110) (5,397,286)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,042,079 13,439,365
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 7,568,969 $ 8,042,079
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MassDevelopment/Saltonstall Building Redevelopment Corporation
A separate financial statement for M/SBRC is published and is available upon request.

On May 2, 2002, the Agency issued bonds for a total of approximately $195.8 million to fund the
construction of the Project, of which $162.9 million and $165.8 million is outstanding as of June
30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Agency loaned M/SBRC $20.0 million for the
development of the Project, which is still outstanding as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, along with
$24.5 million and $22.9 million, respectively, of accrued interest. This Agency loan, including
interest accrued, is eliminated in the Agency financial statements. The Agency is not obligated

to fund any operating deficiencies incurred by M/SBRC.

M/SBRC restated its fiscal year 2012 beginning net position by a reduction of approximately
$9.0 million due to the implementation of GASB 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities, during fiscal year 2013. Deferred financing costs and deferred expenses were

retroactively fully amortized due to the implementation.

Summary financial information for M/SBRC is presented below:

Statements of Net Position as of June 30:

Assetls

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net

Total assets

Deferred Gutflows of Resources

Deferred outflow- interest rate swap

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Due to Massachusetts Development Finance Agency
Massachusetts Development Finance Agency note payable-current

Noncurrent liabilities
Total kabilities

Net position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position
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2013 2012
(As restated)
$ 3,324,869 % 3,529,559
32,263,229 30,427,334
113,236,048 117,371,065
148,824,146 151,327,958
15,943,560 21,643,394
6,467,688 6,877,093
24,543,034 22,943,032
20,000,000 20,000,000
175,068,221 183,012,124
226,078,943 232,832,249
(32,712,301) (31,371,572)
5,176,238 5,087,626
(33,775.174) (33,576,951
(61,311,237) (59,860,897)

$ 164,767,706

$

172,971,352
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the vear

ended June 30:

2013 2012

(As restated)

Operating revenues $ 22,710,393 § 22247084
Operating expenses 10,314,775 9,695,076
Depreciation and amortization 4,034,458 4,056,287

Operating income 8,361,160 8,495,721

Nonoperating expenses, net

(9.811,500) (9,928,357)

Decrease in net position

(1,450,340) (1,432,636)

Net position - beginning of the year (59,860,897) (58,428,261)

Net posttion - end of the year $ (61,311,237) $ (59,860,897)

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30:

Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities
Net cash provided by nvesting activities

Net increase m cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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2013 2012

$ 12,641,416  $ 12,675,488
(11,832,104)  (10,060,443)
773,990 773,477

1,583,302 3,388,522
19,994,802 16,606,280

$ 21,578,104  $ 19,994,802
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17.

New Markets Tax Credit Program

The Agency has accounted for its 0.01% ownership interests in the NMTC entities using the
equity method of accounting. The total amount invested in these NMTC entities was $19,127
and $21,572 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

As part of the closing of the NMTC entities, the Agency receives sub-allocation fees from the
capitalized funds and such fees are included in bond issuance and New Markets Tax Credit fees
in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012.
The Agency receives such fees as organizational fees for structuring and organizing the sub-
allocation of the new markets tax credits of the NMTC entities. The sub-allocation fees
recognized during fiscal years 2013 and 2012 were $361,021 and $1,205,359, respectively.

The Agency receives an annual management fee for services related to managing the operations
of the NMTC entities, including accounting, legal, management, technical and other services, as
needed by the NMTC entities. Total management fees earned for fiscal years 2013 and 2012
was $982,681 and $941,196, respectively. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, management fees of
$658,239 and $514,886, respectively, remains unpaid to the Agency, and is included in accounts
receivable and other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Agency also receives loan servicing fees from MassDevelopment New Markets CDE #1,
LLC (“CDE#1") for loan processing services the Agency provides to CDE #1. In fiscal years
2013 and 2012, the Agency earned $59,513 and $61,834, respectively for these services. All
amounts were paid to the Agency as of June 30, 2013 and 2012.

The Agency may, from time to time, loan operating cash to the NMTC entities for professional
services and be reimbursed at a later date. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, $171,300 and
$484,400, respectively, remains unpaid to the Agency. Four NMTC entities also hold $782,000
in an escrow account as security for the Agency’s obligations as manager of the entities. These
amounts are included in accounts receivable and other assets on the statements of net position.
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Legal Matters

The Agency is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of
business. Management believes that the final outcome of such matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations or liquidity of the Agency.

On or about March 31, 2011, Evergreen Solar Inc. (“EVS™) shut down its manufacturing facility
located at 112 Barnum Road, Devens. This shut down created a default under the ground lease
between the Agency and EVS for the property located at 112 Barnum Road and resulted in the
loss of the benefits granted under the terms of the First Amended and Restated Tax Increment
Financing Agreement and created a default under the Project Grant Agreement. All of

these agreements were originally entered into by the Agency and EVS, and dated as of
November 20, 2007. On August 15, 2011, EVS filed for bankruptcy. The parties were in
negotiations with EVS regarding all of these agreements and amounts due to the Agency at the
time of the bankruptcey filing. During fiscal year 2012, the Agency entered into a bankruptcy
court approved settlement agreement with EVS, which resulted in a payment to the Agency in
the amount of $5,276,750 as full and final scttlement of the matters arising out of the
agreements. This amount was applied as follows:

$2,670,000 Land sale to EVS (112 Barnum Road)
1,501,605  FY2011 real estate taxes
828,395  Grant proceeds
276,750  Land sale Lot 2A (parking parcel)

$5.276.750

The $2,670,000 is related to the land sale at 112 Barnum Road and the $276,750 is related to the
parking lot sale and both are included in gains on sale of real estate, net in the June 30, 2012
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. The $1,501,605 is related to fiscal year
2011 real estate taxes owed to the Agency. This amount relieved an outstanding receivable that was
ncluded in accounts receivable and other assets in the statements of net position at June 30, 2011.
The $828,395 is the Agency’s recovery of prior grant disbursements made by the Agency to EVS.
This amount is included in other operating income to offset operating expenses that were not
recoverable from EVS due to its bankruptey in the June 30, 2012 statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position.
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20.

Restatement of Balances

The Agency restated fiscal year 2012 beginning net position by $9,359,297 due to the
implementation of GASB 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, during fiscal
year 2013. Deferred financing costs of $7,355,141 and deferred expenses of $2,004,156 were
retroactively fully amortized due to the implementation.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 15, 2013, the date the financial
statements were available for issuance, noting no material events to disclose.
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Fotal Bailiies 4,688,181 1,514,520 563,135 2379,533 140,063 iio 6,308 E 844,501 768219 23,608,139 1122380 IR OT845 A3M64000 (623365331 212098,660
Net pisificn
Net imestinee i capfal assere 16,856,433 - - - - B . 4776651 1,567,574 25,997,010 - 3712301 4858200 1,457,354 74,791,788
Restricted 20268 - 26EI2ITT  ITS5IE90% 4496100 7042202 ILABSBAS LLIET162 33866083 8,401,253 (LE15.333) BG4S0 5,176,298 {68.113) 2576209 142728,567
Tnrcstricted 182453 450 - - - . - - - - 308164 (33TTITAL - 20,169,610 176,146,460
Tota! et pesitin 206 526,561 26333,071 3156908 4496309 TUAII0E T TTAR RS N ETIG2  R15a25a8 15068 427 23,331,677 EEENETS (01311337 ) & 750,087 F103,173 395,666,807
Toul Gbiles sod erpositon 5 201208743 § FR366797 8 2OW0M 8 GRIS6H S 81365 8 11483955 S TLINAGT § B3ATG0M §  XNIINed6 §  ATAIOBI6 & TORSITA § (64767000 5 EME186 § (38207339) § 605705467
Stitements of Doparments! Revemes, Expenses utd Changes in Kot Position
Devoars Gos,
Brownficld Emerging Cubtusi Mortguge  Chadtatle  Charter School Devers Bleettic Water, Wistewnter
Gonerl Operations Redovelopment  Tocknolomy Fuuifities Insucunee et Fagilisles Devens sty Bivisiors Diher MSBRC oot Corp Eliwinations Total
Operating revemaes 5 9,799,830 § 62478 & 498400 S 93 5 1662 S 6472 5 2B 5 9385007 5 12964988 T 1aTH0R 5 103134 § 22716393 § ARAZ] § (2631883} S M2EGIT
Ope zuting expenses 27,804,059 208867 1,859,800 522,335 244,413 S4504 106,660 15490,258 13,254,537 10,627516 664,713 14345233 62,472 {3806,777;  BLIGLGIA
Opxeanting BxomeThsg) 8,004,229 ) (20081927 { LA0L400) {521,582} {62453 (47.532) (RAAIT) (6105200 % {289,515 ) 132,132 (361,579} EXEINT 145,840 3,175,204 {T28L465)
Nonwperating revences/texpons 0s) 242,006 85,950 206 24,581 1,017 38,368 42 40,293 (151903 { L0040 ) 3,779 {981,500} 136,255 1706578 {TRR0,387 }
Capltal cortiibsthons/(dis ributions) (245718 ¢ 5407,376) - (1,H5480) - {245,361 } - 5755975 (874802 } 917,23% (ByA62) - 4,304,758 (2843077} (34,402 Y
Incrensefdecresse) 1t pastior: {B153938 )  (TRLBI8)  (133LiM) (1,612,981) (6436 (255725} {E2E70) 308,634 ) (LAEOOIS ) 909,341 {63362 {1430346} AATLIR 2038895 (15,196,254
Met positan bogintting of your 214874499 194095 IRB4ELE SE09,000 TGI8 ML 10469332 K194LsdT 20,2%4.871 22,412,336 7501885 (59,860897) 378,733 22,064,278 AR ESIA61
Met posifon-etd of yeur $ o JUGS20561 & F6BDITT F ATEIGHE § 4406100 8 HEIER0ZTE 154858d3 & 11387160 5 81633550 % 16068,840 & 23021.677 & G.5e9623 3 (6L31L7237) 5 FTG008T 8 ZLI0AE73 B 303,666,807

Masselasutts Development Fiarwe Ageney
Supplemental inforsalion
e 30, 2013
{zmuoditedy

Btatergents of Deparmentat Net Position
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Masschusntts Development Finanee Agency
Supplementa? hefozsmation
June 38, 2012
manditedy

Statements of Bepartirenral Net Position
(A restated)

Devens Gas,

Brownlield Emerging Culturat Mortgage  Cluzitable  Clarter Schioo) Devens Elevhie Water, Wastewater
Gengzt Qperntions Redovelapnens | Tochnolozy Faclities Isueancs Trust 3 Deves Uiility Divislon __ Ulicy Divlsions Octwr M/SBRC _ Taunton Corp__ Eliwlnations “Totat
Asseth
Current assets §  4LSRALIDL 5 3ZURAIS § 26304365 § 9200426 § T265ITH S 2836066 § 15SM660 § 095870 5 2964485 § 5160048 §  GUELL & AI958 B e § (TA02372) § LT9E634T
Monetrom assots 160,450,123 2,720,263 2,578,215 - (584221 SOATMS (FE5540)  1330REA0 7,007,438 £702,537 [RR-E ] 30,427,334 - {4L,564,198)  EO0,T15A67
Copited assets, 1l 17,242,310 - - - - - - A43.81% 056 19,398 962 38838001 - Lilatees oo, 507 [ SlLGGaY 241857347
Total assots 315,583,528 S400BATE  JRBELIEG G003 1206748 LL1Sia11  11As020  B0RS3TE FERERo 49,T6EABT TAS0IES  1SLIT058 @GS0 (43477234) 012329161
Delerted oulflows of resowmces
Deferred otbow iorest tade s - - - - - - - - - - - 21643394 - - 20,643,394
Fonat ansets Ak deferred wd s 210,553 A4 3558518 26 982 587 4.200.426 7,206.74% 1475781 11,459,320 03,045,376 29,462,905 49,764 430 7.8E6,303 ITLOT] 352 990,340 (43471234 633872 555
Liakilities
Crront fubiizs 3,455,083 41259 128,228 93,947 15,197 16,241 (1927} (8079313 1393240 3,042,408 370,398 7,080,310 208353 (LR L4ERANE
Nuonoarred futlities 3454012 391833 6250 2163388 37943 - S062 11851780 TIRETH 24,306,742 8128 25751990 486430 (61251326) 2087099
Total iabdlises BRI G AT AT 3,100,336 163,215 16,241 (102133 11,145,840 $.179.052 1,345,150 STRALE  2aiiagdde GILEDS (6835433147 235509454
Net posltion
Brvested i aapsad, 8¢ o reated diebt 17,242,310 - - - - - - 45,126,895 11,712,516 27462912 - 131,373,572) 468,696 (269,763} W28
Resuicted 250167 FLIMO0S 28848102 5,108,000 LIAGIS PLTHLSTD 11469332 36,814,621 8.572,055 (5,050,526 ) T.101,263 587,626 {E9.581 TIERAM 159,876,560
Direstirited 197,181.023 - - - - - - - - - A0A22 . {33396581) - 14610,571 178,614,264
“Total et positian Si4514480 34T 005 38 848102 GRG0 TM03Gik  LL.TA1590  Fl 46932 81943 33T 30,284,871 33412338 TSOIBRS [ 59860, | 378,738 FIEGA218 AR 93681
ot labiltes and vet postion % 2)95B}634 §  3IASO851E § IROTIIR0 S 0209426 § T06748 § VLTSNS $ HASEI0 S 930BSITE $ 2005 § 49761486 ¥ TREO303 § 172071352 § w0508 & fadATRI) § 633871535
Stulements of Departwntal Revepoes, Experses ant Changes in Net Position
{As restated)
Devens Gss,
Rrovafichl Tanerping Cultural Mortgage  Charitable  Clurter School Thevens Electrie Water, Waslewaler
Gonerat Operations Redevsiopment _ Techoology Fiwilitics Iritroice Trust Faeflites Devens  Tility Division _ Ulisy Bivisions Otlcr MSBRC  TewsonComn  Jiidnaton Tatat
Dpersting revenes 3 17201587 § S5818 S 160759 § -8 115811 8 - 8 i2,550 § 11658404 & 4646671 S 1091405 § 82414 § 2247084 § 2,590 § (10667383) 5 768874
Operating expenses 21,660,819 §HE006 3,335,249 569,879 1R4,858 53,590 LTS 11513088 14,429,233 HBIETIS 282,240 1,351.363 (1213,508) 71846603
Orposting imore i) TI85a2)  (82haT8)  (AGIGANOY (OEOETR)  LOBZGTY | (95,599)  LIZIOES} 4 8346847 FIEEE 72,692 (L0826 ) §AS5, 741 146316 REET]
Nonaperating revnuesie xporses} 154,861 13,896 54954 15,162 - 196,784 13 £ 37,906 ) {71821y (168,387 3 5T (9928.337) ¢6,104) L7318 (RA38222)
Cagitat contributh i 14204420) (43011631 - 3067148 - (268640} - 1553003 {5480,000) 3406200 - . U665 (305965 ) (197,078
Tneecnse deoease) g et postion FEDUBESEY (5056395} (BILETG)  {ITEES6S)  (GR26T)  {26L4B3)  (120996) 0I5 (SDIA3EE) 5,404,305 (1963153 (14326361 B 1,579,533
Vet posifosr begianing of yeur ZETRIS 3850490 33 868678 D827,955  7I7L905  SLO43004  ILSUYBRE  B1300,574 26,109,254 JTHE051 7698200 (38,428,263 - 20494795 437,643
Wit pesiiosr ond of s § ST S IAM0h008 § TAEBALLOE § 6,100,080 & 7403608 § IL74ESI0 S 11409330 § 1041507 & 20284878 §  0dI23%0 §  TSO1883 4 (908608073 % STE735 5 2300%,219 5 A0 E63L61
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MassDevelopment FY13 Business Plan Goals

GOAL

ACTION

MEASUREMENT

1. Create and retain jobs

Provide financing and real estate
services

For finance and real estate projects: #
of construction jobs; # permanent
jobs;# of jobs by region;

# jobs in Gateway Cities;

# existing jobs at projects financed

2. Strengthen and champion
economically-challenged
communities including Gateway Cities

Provide financing and real estate
services

# of projects & $ invested in Gateway
Cities; # of projects & $ invested in
Economically Distressed Areas (EDAS)

3. Build out Devens and move it
toward self-sustainability.

Increase sources of revenue and
manage/reduce expenses

Square Feet of new development
constructed; % infrastructure
complete for full buildout; Total $
invested; % reduction in annual
deficit; growth in total assessed
valuation.

4. Provide access to capital for
businesses and non-profits throughout
the Commonwealth

Continue to review programs and
adjust to respond to current Borrower
needs; Pursue strategic partnerships
and alternative financing structures to
increase MassDevelopment's
resources and lending capacity

# of financings; Total $ invested; track
by Regions & by sector

5. Work with federal, state, local,
nonprofit, and private partners to
strengthen the Commonwealth’s
defense sector.

Work with Military Asset and Security
Task Force to develop operational
efficiency improvement plans and
master plans for the installations.
Increase small business access to
defense contracts.

Work with DTl and Hanscom AFB to
institute pilot programs on rapid
acquisitions and Other Transition
Agreements.

Task force subcommitees created
and workplans developed; # plans
developed or studies completed for
bases. Prime and sub contractor
event; use of pilot program.

6. Support manufacturing

Participate in the Commonwealth's
Advanced Manufacturing
Collaborative (AMC) specifically
Access to Capital & Promoting
Manufacturing working groups. (2.4.3)
Provide financing programs for
manufacturers through tax-exempt
bonds, General Fund & Emerging

Technology Fund.

# of manufacturing Projects financed
and $ invested; financial support for
manufacturing initiatives; participate
in AMC events & meetings.




7. Support innovation and
entrepreneurship

Increase and measure funding for
early-stage entrepreneurs and small
business. (2.1.3).

Increase number of interns (2.2.1).

# interns at MassDevelopment; #
informational e-mails to
MassDevelopment borrowers re
internships & resources

Increase production of rental housing
in high-market demand areas near
centers of innovation and
entrepreneurial activity (2.2.2).

# new rental units financed

Support growth of small- and mid-
sized businesses.(2.4.1)

# loans for expansion of businesses

Facilitate adoption of local
innovations into small and mid-size
businesses and manufacturers (2.4.1
and 2.4.3).

8. Support regional development
through infrastructure investments and
local empowerment

Identify priority development sites for
job and housing growth through
regional planning efforts (3.1.1).

Promote regional priority setting
through academies; participate in
interagency permitting task force

Provide targeted assistance to
accelerating development within
identified priority areas (3.1.3).

# projects assisted in priority areas; #
43(d) projects assisted

MassDevelopment is the Owner of this
Priority:

Encourage cities and towns to
participate in structured process for
implementing local economic
develop strategies (3.2.1).

# Cities and towns completing
structured self assessment process; %
of cities and towns in Commonwealth
completing assessments

MassDevelopment is the Owner of this
Priority:

Run economic development
academies throughout the
Commonwealth (3.3.1).

# academies; # in each region

Provide technical assistance to cities
and towns.

# TAPs in partnership with ULI-Boston; #
municipal technical assistance
projects

Develop or redevelop critical surplus
public properties.

# projects and sq. footage
developed at surplus properties




9. Increase the ease of doing business
in the Commonwealth

Work with MMP and MassEcon to
expand ambassadors program (4.3.1).

# of ambassadors and the annual
increase in the number of
ambassadors.

Showcase development-ready sites
with information on business and
housing costs (4.3.4).

Link MassDevelopment web site to
MassEcon Market Ready sites

Encourage & promote streamlined
permitting in Devens and other cities
and towns.

# of regional academies promoting
streamlined permitting; # communities
assisted with permitting process issues

Keep MDFA web site fresh & user
friendly.

track # hits, #clicks

10. Address Massachusetts cost
competiveness.

Fund use of e-health technologies
through Tech Dollars program (5.1.3).

# loans

Use a portion of HEFA charitable trust
funds to make community health
centers more efficient.

$ granted for community health
center efficiency improvements

Create more housing of varied types.

# housing units financed or
developed at MassDevelopment
projects including Devens

Encourage the business use of
Commercial net metering at Devens

# businesses with on-site energy
generation

Increase renewables as part of
Devens Electric utility mix

% increase in renewables

Note: Goals 7 - 10 align with the Commonwealth's goals outlined in "Choosing to Compete in the 21st Century"
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